STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management ¢l Petron Corporation (the “Company™) and Subsidiaries, is responsible lor
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial stalements as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, including the additional components attached therein, in
accordance  with the prescribed financial reporting  framework indicated theren. This
responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial stalements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, selecling and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumsiances,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the linancial statements and submits the same to
the stockholders.

R.G. Manabat & Co., CPAs, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
examined the fmancial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report w the stockholders ‘or member, has expressed its opinion on the
fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination.

RAMONS. ANG
Chairnmn\:nct Chief Executive Officer

LUBIN BINEPOMUCENO

President

EMFMANURL B7ERANA
Senjor Vice President and Chief Finance Cfficer

Signed this 24th day of March 2014
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PETRON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO belore me, a Nolary Public for and in the City of
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila, this APR 14 2016 | affiants being personally known to me
and signed this fnstrument in my presence and avowed under penalty of law to the whole truth of
condents thereof.

Name Competent Bvidence of Identity Date/Place of Issue
Ramon S. Ang Passport No. XX0748364 1 Jul 20117 DIFA Manila
Lubin I3. Nepomuceno Passport No. 1135027219 29 Mar 2012 / DFA Manila
Emmanuel F. Eraila Passport No. EB 1133575 07 Oct 2010/ DFA Manila
Doc. No. QO i
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PTR No. 1942189/1-2-15f
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MCLE Compliance No. IV-0D158623/4-
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R.Q. Mansbat & Co, Telephone  +83 {2) 885 7000

The KPMG Canter, %F Fax +63 (7) 894 1985
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Branches: Subic - Ceby - Bacolod - Hoito

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Petron Corporation

SMC Head Office Complex

40 San Miguel Avenue

Mandaluyong City

We have audited Lhe accompanying consolidated financial statements of Petron Corporation and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of Tinancial position as at

December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equily and
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended

December 31, 2013, and notes, comprising & summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management s Responsibility for the Consolidaied Financial Statenients

Managemeut is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standacds, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditars’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our awdits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation ang fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circamstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the eniity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated {inancial
statements. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

© 2014 LG anatet o, o s prneship and s momker A PG Fagasn o, 000, 9 untd ecombr 3. 206

of tha KPMWG netvvork of independent firms afiiated with KPMG Internstiona! SEC Acersditetion No. 0004-FRI, Group A, vihd unfil Novembar 22, 2014
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o bnd KPMG Inseenational of any ather mambar firar vis-avis third patling,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respecls, the
consolidated financial position of Petron Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013
and 2012, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 201 3, in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards. ’

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

ADOR C. MEJIA
Partner
CPA License No. 0029620
SEC Accreditation No. 0464-AR-2, Group A, valid until March 24, 2016
Tax identification No. 112-071-634
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-10-2013
Issued May 9, 2013; valid until May 8, 2016
PTR No. 4225135MC
Issued January 2, 2014 at Makati City

March 24, 2014
Makati City, Metro Manila




PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARITES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAR 35} gmﬁu
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

r;;\Ph

"y~

|

4 e SN

RECEWVED sur,;L i ru HH o O

\ Frre ke RAL;
LGLL
December 31 January |
December 31 (As restated - {As restated -
Note 2013 Note 3) Note 3)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents & 34, 33 506,398 126,965 P23,823
Financial assets al fair value
through profit or loss 7,34, 35 783 186 237
Available-for-sale (inancial assels 4, 8 34, 35 458 51 -
Trade and other receivables - net 4, 9, 28, 34, 35 67,667 57,731 26,605
Inventories 4, 10 51,721 49,582 37,763
Other current assets i3 12,933 10,750 8.178
183,960 145,265 96,606
Assets held for sale 5 - 588 10
Total Current Assets 183,960 145,853 96,616
MNoncurrent Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 4, 8, 34, 35 457 860 1,036
Praperty, plant and equipment - net 4,12.37 141,647 104,111 50,446
Investiments in associates 4,17 885 1,641 2,505
Investment property - net 4,13 1t4 1S 794
Deferred tax assets 4. 27 162 78 i5
Goodwili 4, 14 9,386 9,032 -
Other noncurren! assets - net 4,15 34, 35 20,847 18,643 27,710
Total Noncurrent Assets 173,498 134,480 82,506
P337,458 P280,333 P179,122
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Lisbilities
Short-term Joans 16, 34, 35 P100.671 P99.735 P40,593
Liabilities for crude oil and i
petroleum product importation 34, 35 38,707 24 960 13,842
Trade and other payables 17,28 34, 35 24,291 14,867 7.381
Derivative liabilities 34, 35 152 245 35
Income tax payable 194 52 78
Current portion of long-term debt - net 7§, 34, 33 8,155 73 4,124
Total Current Liabifities 176,570 139,932 66,073

Forvard




2012

December 31
Pecember 31 (Asrestated -

January |
{As restated -

Note 2013 Note 3) Notg 3)
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of current
portion 18, 34 35 P38,032 P55.940 P43,744
Retirement benelits liability kil 820 983 4
Deferred tax liabilities 27 4,605 3.143 3,017
Asset retirement obligation 4,19 1,004 997 1,061
Other noncurrent liabilities 20), 34, 35 4,539 2,435 749
Tolal Noncurreut Liabilities 69,0060 63,498 50,566
Total Liabilities 245,570 205,430 116,639
Equity Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent Company 27
Capital slock 9,475 9,475 9475
Addittonal paid-in capital %,764 9,764 9,764
Undated subordinated capital
securities 30,546 - -
Retained earnings 42,658 44,507 40,695
Reserve for retirement plan 2,242 10 2,189
Qther reserves (721} (201 70
Total Equity Attributable (.
Equity Holders of the Parent
Company 93,964 59,355 62,193
Non-contrelling interests 17,924 17,348 299
Total Equity 111,888 76,903 62,483
P357,458 250,333 P179,122

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staiements.




PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
{Amounts in Million Pesos, Except Per Share Data)

2012 2011
As restated As restated
. Note 2013 (Note 3) (Note 3)
SALES 28, 37 463,638 P424.795 P273,956
COST OF GOODS SOLD 22 440,479 406,798 251,610
GROSS PROFIT 23,159 17,997 22,346
SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES 23 (11,475) (10,137) (7,229
INTEREST EXPENSE AND OTHER
FINANCING CHARGES 26, 37 (5,462) (7,508) (5,124)
INTEREST INCOME 26, 37 1,285 1,121 1.380
SHARE IN NET INCOME (LOSSES)
OF ASSOCIATES il 110 (11} (137)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) - Net 26 {675) 777 321
(16,2173 {13,758) (10,589}
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,942 2,239 11,757
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27,36, 37 1,850 459 2,827
NET INCOME P3,092 P1,78¢ Pg,930
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company 32 P5,247 P11 . P8,914
Non-controlling interests (155) 79 16
P3,092 P1,780 - P8,930
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER
COMMON-SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY 32 P0.28 (.08 P0.82

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statentents.




PETRON CORPORATICGN AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOMF,
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

2012 2011
As reslated As restaled
Note 2013 (Note 3) (Note 3)
NET INCOME 5,092 P1,780 P§.,930
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOMEL
(LOSS)
JTEMS THAT WILL NOT BE
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Equity reserve for retirement ptan 30 3,232 (3,086) (1,750}
Income tax benefit (expense) {957) 914 525
( 2,275 (2,172) (1,223)
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED
TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 27 389 (1,214 {12)
Unrealized fair value gains (losses) on
available-for-sale financial assets 827 3n 7 )]
Income tax benefit 2 3 -
560 ©(1,204) (13)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) 2,835 (3,376) (1,238)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ) .
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR : P7,927% (P1,596) P7.692
Attributable to: :
Equity holders of the Parent Company P6,971 (P868) P7.676
Non-controlling interests 956 (728) 16
P7,927 {P1,596} 7,692

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS _
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Million Pesos)

2012 2011
As restated As restated
Nuote 2013 (Note 3) {Note 3)-
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P6,942 P2,239 P11,757
Adjustments for:
Share in net losses (income) of associaies 1i (1itn 11 {37
Retirement benefits cost (income) 30 323 161 (214)
Interest expense and other financing
charges 26 5,462 7,508 5,124
Depreciation and amortization 25 5,806 5,113 3,657
Interest income 26 (1.2853) (1,i21) (1,380
Unrealized foreign exchange losses
{gains) - net 3,003 (556) 123
Other gain (1,153} (1,116) {78)
Operating income before working capital
changes 18,988 12,239 19,126
Changes in noncash assets, certain current | .

- liabilities and others 33 22,410 (3,828 (13,639
Interest paid (8,370} (7,127 (5.309)
Income taxes paid {608) (616) (752)
Interest received 1,332 1,186 1,364
Net cash flows provided by operating

activities 33,752 1,834 790
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and

equipment i2 (51,585) (41,848) (21,342)
Proceeds from sale of properly, plant and

equipment 15,185 703 2272
Proceeds {rom sale of an investment .

property previously classified as “held

for sale” 13 1,167 - 96
Decrease (increase) in:

Other receivables (4,880) (15,498) (037)

Other nopcurrent assels (3,018) 11,803 2232
Reductions from (additions to): - '

Financjal asscts at fair value through

profit or Joss {626) 29 )

Investments “ (14} (53714)

Avalilable-for-sale financial assets (4) 125 125
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and

cash equivalents acquired 432 (17,843) -

_Acquisition of non-controlling interest - (1,138) -

Net cash flows used in investing activities (43,329) (63,681) (22,637)

Forward




2012 201
As restated As restated
Note 2013 (Note 3) {(Note 3)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES .
Proceeds from avaitment of loans P349,212 P335.351 P134,354
Payments of:
Loans (345,180) (283,459) (131,148)
Cash dividends and distributions 21 (4,098) (2,436) (1,886}
Proceeds from issuance of undated
subordinated capital securities 30,540 - -
Proceeds from issuance of a subsidiary’s
preferred share to non-controlling
interests - 14216 -
increase in other noncurrent liabilities 2.059 1,735 338
Net cash flows provided by financing
activities 32,539 65,407 1,658
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 471 (438) 28
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,433 3,142 (20.161)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ]
BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,965 23,823 43,984
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 6 50,398 P26,965 P23.823

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in Million Pésos, Except Par Value, Number of Shares and
Per Share Data, Exchange Rates and Commodity Volumes)

1.

Reporting Entity

Peiron Corporation (the “Parent Company” or “Petron”) was incorporated under the laws
of the Republic of the Philippines and is registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 22, 1966. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements comprise the financial statements of Petron Corporation and
Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in
associates and jointly controlied entity. Petron is the largest oil refining and marketing
company in the Philippines supplying nearly 40% of the country’s fuel requirements.
Petron’s vision is to be the leading provider of total customer solutions in the energy
sector and its derivative businesses.

Petron operates a refinery in Limay, Bataan, with a rated capacity of 180,000 barrels a
day.. Petron’s International Standards Organization (ISO) 14001 - certified refinery
processes crude oil into a full range of petroleum products including liquefied petroleum
gas (LPG), gasoline, diesel, jet fuel, kerosene, industrial fuel oil, solvents, asphalts,
mixed xyléne and propylene. From the refinery, Petron moves its products mainly by sea
to Petron’s 31 depots and terminals situated all over the country. Through this
nationwide network, Petron supplies fuel oil, diesel, and LPG to various industrial
customers. The power sector is Petron’s largest customer. Petron also supplies jet fuel at
key airports to international and domestic carriers.

With close to 2,200 service stations, Petron remains the leader in all the major segments
of the market. Petron retails gasoline, diesel, and kerosene to motorists and public
transport operators. Petron also sells its LPG brands “Gasul” and “Fiesta” to households
and other industrial consumers through an extensive dealership network. To broaden its
market base and further strengthen its leadership in the LPG business, Petron launched a
second LPG brand called “Fiesta Gas” in 2008,

Petron operates a lube oil blending plant at Pandacan Oil Terminal, where it
manufactures lubes and greases. These are also sold through Petron’s service stations
and sales centers.

In July 2008, a subsidiary completed the construction of a Fuel Additives Blending
facility at the Subic Bay Freeport. This plant, which started commercial operations in
October 2008, serves the needs of Innospec Limited, a leading global fuel additive
company, in the Asia-Pacific region,

Petron is expanding its non-fuel businesses by partnering with major fast-food chains,
coffee shops, and other consumer services companies to give its customers a one-stop full
service experience. Petron continuously puts up additional service stations in strategic
tocations. In addition, Micro-Filling Stations (MFS) are being built across the country
starting 2009.




In line with Petron’s efforts to increase its presence in the regional market, it exports
various petroleum and non-fuel products to Asia-Pacific countries such as South Korea,
Taiwan, China, Singapore, Cambodia, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong and Thailand.

The Parent Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of Securities Regulation
Code and its shares of stock are listed for trading at the Philippine Stock Exchange
(PSE). SEA Refinery Holdings B.V. (SEA BV}, a company incorporated in The
Netherlands and owned by funds managed by the Ashmore Group, was Petron’s parent
company prior to 2010,

On Becember 24, 2008; San Miguel Corporation (SMC) and SEA BV entered into an
Option Agreement (the “Option Agreement”) granting SMC the option to buy the entire
ownership interest of SEA BV in its local subsidiary, SEA Refinery Corporation (SRC).
The option may be exercised by SMC within a period of two years from
December 24, 2008,

On April 29, 2010, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company endorsed the
amendment of Petron’s Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws increasing the number of
directors from ten (10) to fifteen (15) and the quorum for meetings of the BOD from six
(6) to eight (8). The same was approved by the stockholders during their annual meeting
on July 12, 2010. The amendment was approved by the SEC on August 13, 2010.

On April 30, 2010, SMC notified SEA BV that it would exercise its option to purchase
16,000,000 shares of SRC from SEA BV, which is approximately 40% of the outstanding
capital stock of SRC. SRC owns 4,696,885,564 common shares of Petron, representing
approximately 50.1% of its issued and outstanding common shares. SMC conducted a
tender offer for the common shares of Petron as a result of its intention to exercise the
option to acquire 100% of SRC from SEA BV under the Option Agreement. A total of
184,702,538 Pefron common shares tendered were crossed at the PSE on June 8, 2010, .
which were equivalent to approximately 1.97% of the issued and outstanding common
shares of Petron. On June 15, 2010, SMC executed the Deed of Sale for the purchase of
the 16,000,000 shares of SRC from SEA BV. '

On July 30, 2010, the Petron Corporation Employees’ Retirement Plan {PCERP) bought
2,276,456,097 common shares in Petron cémprising 24.025% of the total outstanding
capital stock thereof from SEA B.V. The purchase and sale transaction was executed
through the facilities of the PSE.

On August 31, 2010, SMC purchased additional 1,517,637,398 commen shares of Petron
from SEA BV through a special block sale crossed at the PSE. The said shares comprise
approximately 16% of the outstanding capital stock of Petron.

On October 18, 20)0, SMC also acquired from the public a total of 530,624 common
shares of Petron, representing approximately 0.006% of the outstanding capital stock of
Petron.

On December 15, 2010, SMC exercised its option to acquire the remaining 60% of SRC
from SEA BV pursuant to the Option Agreement. With the exercise of the option, SMC
became beneficial owner of approximately 68.26% of the outstanding and issued shares
of stock of Petron. As such, on that date, SMC- obtained control of SRC and Petron.




On January 24, 2012, PCERP sold 695,300,000 of its common shates in Petron to
various foreign institutional investors through. the facilities of the PSE. On
December 5, 2012, PCERP further sold 195,000,000 of its common shares in Petron. As
of December 31, 2013, Petron’s public float stood at 16.61%.

The intermediate parent company of Petron is San Miguel Corporation, a company
incorporated in the Philippines and its ultimate parent company is Top Frontier
Investments Holdings, Inc. which is incorporated in the Philippines.

The registered office address of Petron is SMC Head Office Complex, 40 San Miguel
Avenue, Mandaluyong City.

2. Basis of Preparation

Staternent of Compliance :

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). PFRS consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine Interpretations issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the BOD on
March 24, 2014.

Basis of Measurement .

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the historical
cost basis of accounting except for the following which are measured on an alternative
basis at each reporting date:

ltemns Measurement Bases
Derivative financial instruments at fair Fair value
value through profit or loss.
Non-derivative financial instruments at fair Fair value
value through profit or loss
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets Fair value
Retirement benefits asset/liability Fair value of plan assets less the present
value of the defined benefit obligation,
limited by asset ceiling '

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the
Parent Company’s functional currency. All financial information are rounded off to the
nearest mitlion (P000,000), except when otherwise indicated.




Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial stalements include the accounts of the Parent Company and its -
subsidiaries, These subsidiaries are:

Percentage Country of
Name of Subsidiary of Ownership Incorporation
2013 2012
Overseas Ventures Insurance Corporation {Ovincar) 100.00 100.0G Bermuda
Petrogen Insurance Corporation (Pelrogen) 100.60 1006.00 Philippines
Petron Freeport Corporation (PFC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines
Petron Singapore Trading Pte., Lid. (PSTPL) 106.00 100.00 Singapore
Petron Marketing Corporation (PMC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines
New Ventures Realty Corporation (NVRC) and
Subsidiaries 40.00 40.00 Philippines
Limay Energen Corporation (LEC) 100.00 100.00 Philippines
British Virgin
" Petron Global Limited (PGL) 100.60% 100.00  islands
Petron Finance (Labuan) Limited 100.66  100.00 Malaysia
Petron Oil and Gas Mauritius Lid. and
Subsidiaries (Mauritius) 100.00 100.00 Mauritius
Petrochemical Asia (HK) Limited (PAIML) and
Subsidiaries 4585 4585 Hong Kong

“henership represents [00% of PGL's cammon shares.
0 2012, invesiment in PAFIL was accounted for as an assaciate (Notes 11 and 141).

Petrogen and Ovincor are both engaged in the business of non-life insurance and
re-insurance.

The primary purpose of PFC and PMC is to, among others, sell on 'wholesale or retail and
operate setvice stations, retails outlets, restaurants, convenience stores and the like,

On May 13, 2010, the Parent Company incorporated PSTPL in Singapore. PSTPL has an
initial capitalization of Singapore Dollar 1 million and handles crude, ethanol, catalysts.
and additives procurement, crude vessel chartering and commodity risk management.
PSTPL started commercial operations on July 19, 2010.

NVRC’s primary purpose is to acquire real estate and derive income from its sale or
lease. NVRC is considered as a subsidiary of Petron despite owning only 40% as Petron
has the power, in practice, to govern the financial and operating policies of NVRC, to
appoint or remove the majority of the members of the BOD of NVRC and to cast
majority votes at meetings of the BOD of NVRC. Petron controls NVRC since it is
exposed, and has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with NVRC and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over NVRC.

The primary purpose of LEC is to build, operate, maintain, sell and lease power
generation plants, facilities, equipment and other related assets and generally engage in
the business of power generation and sale of electricity generated by its facilities.

On February 24, 2012, Petron acquired PGL, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin islands. PGL has issued an aggregate of 49,622,176 common shares with a par
vaiue of US$1.00 per share to Petron and 150,000,000 cumulative, non-voting, non-
participating and non-convertible preferred shares series A and 200,000,000 cumulative,
non-voting, non-participating and non-convertible preferred shares series B at an issue
price equal to the par value of each share of US$1.00 to a third party investor {Note 14).




On March 30, 2012, the Parent Company’s indirect offshore subsidiary through
Mauritius, Petron Oil and Gas International Sdn, Bhd. (POGI), completed the acquisition
of 65% of Esso Malaysia Berhad (EMB), and 100% of ExxonMobil Malaysia Sdn Bhd
(EMMSB) and ExxonMobil Borneo Sdn Bhd (EMBSB) (POGI, EMB, EMMSB, and
EMBSB are collectively hereinafter referred to as “Petron Malaysia™). Following the
completion of the Unconditional Mandatory Take-Over Offer required by Malaysian
laws to be undertaken by POGI, POGI’s interest in EMB increased to 73.4%. EMB,
EMMSB and EMBSB were later renamed Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Bhd
(PMRMB), Petron Fuel International Sdn Bhd (PFISB) and Petron Oil (M) Sdn Bhd
(POMSB), respectively (Note 14). '

Petron Finance (Labuan) Limited is a holding company incorporated under the laws of
Labuan, Malaysia.

PAHL is a company incorporated in Hong Kong in March 2008. PAHL indirectly owns,
among other assets, a 160,000 metric ton-polypropylene production plant in Mariveles,
Bataan,

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if and
only if, the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

When the Group has less than majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee, rights arising from other contractual arrangements and the Group’s voting rights
and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
stalements from the date when the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date when such control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Parent Company, using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances. Intergroup balances and transactions, including intergroup
unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not
attributable to the Parent Company and are presented in the consolidated statements of
income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statements of financial position, separately from the cquity attributable to
equity holders of the Parent Company.,

Non-controlling interests represent the interests not held by the Group in NVRC,
Mauritius, PGL and PAHL.,




A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction, If the Group loses control over a sub51d1ary, the Group:
(i} derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and the cumulative transaction
differences recorded in equity; (ii) recognizes the fair value of the consideration received,
the fair vatue of any investment retained and any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and,
(iii} reclassify the Parent Company’s share of components previously recognized in other
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the refated assets or liabilities.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in the consolidated financial statements, except for the changes in accounting -
policies as explained below,

Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Amendments to Standards
The FRSC approved the adoption of a number of new or revised standards and
amendments to standards as part of PERS.

Adopted Effective 2013

The Group has adopted the following PFRS effective January 1, 2013 and accordingly,
changed its zccounting policies in the following areas:

* Presentation of ltems of Other Compreliensive Income (dmendments to PAS |1,
Presentation of Financial Statements). The amendments: (a) require that an entity
presents separately the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or foss in the future, if certain conditions are met, from those
that would never be reclassified to profit or loss; (b) do not change the existing
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in two statements;
and (c) change the title of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income to
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. However,
an entity is still allowed to use other titles. The amendments do not address which
items are presented in other comprehensive income or which items need to be
reclassified. The requirements of other PFRS continue to apply in this regard.

As aresult of the adoption of the amendments to PAS 1, the Group has modified the
presentation of items comprising other comprehensive income in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently are presented separately from items that will not be reclassified. The
amendments affect presentation only and have no impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance. Comparative information has been re-presented
accordingly.

* Disclosures: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (4dmendments to
PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures). The amendments include minimum
disclosure requirements related to financial assets and financial liabilities that are:
(a) offset in the consolidated statements of financial position; or (b) subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements. They include a
tabular reconciliation of gross and net amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities, separately showing amounts offset and not offset in the consolidated
statements of financial position.




The adoption of these amendments did -not have an effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

PERS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, introduces a new approach in
determining which investees should be consolidated and provides a single model to
be applied in the control analysis for all investees. An investor controls an investee
when: (a} it has power over an investee; (b} it is exposed or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with that investee; and (c) it has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over that investee. Control is reassessed as facts and
circumstances change. PFRS 10 supersedes PAS 27 (2008), Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, and Philippine Interpretation Standards Interpretation
Committee (SIC) 12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.

Asa result of the adoption of PFRS 10, the Group reassessed controt over its
investees based on the new control model effective January 1, 2013. The
reassessment resulted in changes in consolidation conclusion and in the current
accounting for an investee (Notes 11 and 14f).

PFRS I, Joint Arrangements, focuses on the rights and obligations of joint
arrangements, rather than the legal form. The new standard: (a) distinguishes joint
arrangements between joint operations and joint ventures; and (b) eliminates the
option of using the equity method or proportionate consolidation for jeintly
controlled entities that are now called joint ventures, and only requires the use of
equity method. PFRS 11 supersedes PAS 31, Inierests in Joint Ventures, and
Philippine Interpretation SIC 13, Jointly Conirolled Futities - Non-monetary
Contributions by Venturers.

The adoption of the new standard did not have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

PERS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other FEntities, contains the disclosure
requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements
(i.e., joint operations or joint ventures), associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. The new standard provides -information that enables users to evaluate:
{a) the nature of, and risks associated with, an entity’s inferests in other entities; and
(b} the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. ‘ '

As a result of the-adoption of PFRS 12, the Group has expanded the disclosures on
its interests in other entities (Notes 11 and 14),

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests |
in Other Entities: Trawsition Guidance {(Amendments o PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and
PFRS 12). The amendments simplify the process of adopting PFRS 10, PFRS f1,
and PFRS 12 and provide a relief from the disclosures in respect of unconsolidated
structured entities. Depending on the extent of comparative information provided in
the consolidated financial statemments, the amendments simplify the transition and
provide additional relief from the disclosures that could have been onerous. The
amendments limit the restatement of comparatives to the immediately preceding
period; this applies to the full suite of standards. Entities that provide comparatives
for more than one period have the option of leaving additional comparative periods
unchanged. In addition, the date of initial application is now defined in PFRS 10 as
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the standard is applied for the
first time. At this date, an entity tests whether there is a change in the consolidation
conclusion for its investees.




The Group has applied the transitional provision of the amendments to PFRS 10,
PFRS 11 and PFRS 12.

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, replaces the fair value measurement guidance
contained in individual PFRS with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. It defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and
sets out disclosure requirements for fair value measurements, It explains how to
measure fair value when it is requited or permitted by other PFRS. It does not
infroduce new requirements to measure assets or Liabilities at fair value nor does it
eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurements that currently exist
in certain standards.

The adoption of the new standard did not have a significant effect on the
measurement of the Group’s assets and liabilities. Additional disclosures are
provided in the individual notes relating to the assets and liabilities whose fair values
were determined.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits {Amended 2011). The amendments include the
following requirements: (a) actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income; this change removes the corridor method and
eliminates the ability of entities to recognize all changes in the defined benefit
retirement obligation and in plan assets in profit or loss; and (b} interest income on
plan assets recognized in profit or loss is calculated based on the rate used to discount
the defined benefit retirement obligation.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to PAS 19, the Group has changed its
accounting pelicy with respect to the basis for determining the income or expense
related to its post-employment defined benefit retirement plan. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in othér comprehensive income and the corridor
method was eliminated. Also, the interest income on plan assets recognized in profit
or loss is now calculated based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit
retirement obligation.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011), supersedes PAS 28
(2008). PAS 28 (2011) makes the following amendments: {a) PFRS 5, Noncurrent
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operdtions, applies to an investment, or a
portion of an investment, in an associate or a joint venture that meets the criteria to
be classified as held for sale; and (b) on cessation of significant influence or joint
control, even if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the entity does not remeasure the retained interest.

The adoption of these amendments did not have an effect on the conselidated
financial statements,

Improvements to PFRS 2009-2011 contain amendments to 5 standards with
consequential amendments to other standards and interpretations.

o Comparative Information beyond Minimum Requirements (Amendments to
PAS 1). The amendments clarify the requirements for comparative information
that are disclosed voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to refrospective
application of an accounting policy, or retrospective  restatement or
reclassification of items in the consolidated financiai statements. An entity must
include comparative information in the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information beyond the
minimum required comparative period. The additional comparative period does
not need {o contain a complete set of consolidated financial statements. On the
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other hand, supporting notes for the third consolidated statement of financial
position (mandatory when there is a retrospective application of an accounting
policy, or retrospective reslatement or reclassification of items in the
consolidated financial statements) are not required.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to PAS I, the Group has not
included comparative information in the notes fo the consolidated financial
statements in respect ol the opening consolidated statement of financial position
as of January [, 2012. The amendments only affect presentation and have no
impact on the consoltdated financial statements.

Presentation of the Opening Statement of Financial Position and Related Notes
(Amendments to PAS 1). The amendments clarify that: (a)} the opening
consolidated statement of financial position is required only if there is:
(i) a change in accounting policy; (ii) a retrospective restatement; or
(iti) a reclassification which has a material effect upon the information in the
consolidated statement of financial position; (b) except for the disclosures.
required under PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, notes related to the opening consolidated statement of financial
position are no longer required; and (c) the appropriate date for the opening
consolidated statement of financial position is the beginning of the preceding
period, rather than the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.
This is regardless of whether an entity provides additional comparative
information beyond the minimum comparative information requirements. The
amendments explain that the requirements for the presentation of notes related.to
the additional comparative information and those related to the opening
consolidated statement of financial position are different, because the underlying
objectives are different.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to PAS 1, the Group has not
included comparatwe information in the notes fo the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the opening consolidated statement of financial position
as of January 1, 2012. The amendments only affect presentation and have no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Classtfication of Servicing Equipment (Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant’
and Equipment). The amendments clarify the accounting of spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment. The definition of ‘property,  plant and
equipment’ in PAS 16 is now considered in determining whether these items
should be accounted for under this standard. If these items do not meet the
definition, then they are accounted for using PAS 2, Inventories.

The adoption of these standards did not have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statemnents.

Income Tax Consequences of Distributions (Amendments to PAS 32, Financial
Instruments Presentation). The amendments clarify that PAS 12, Income Taxes
applies to the accounting for income taxes relating to: (a) distributions to holders
of an equity instrument; and (b) transaction costs of an equity transaction. The
amendments remove the perceived inconsistency between PAS 32 and PAS 12.
Before the amendments, PAS 32 indicated that distributions to holders of an
equity instrument are recognized directly in equity, net of any related income tax.
However, PAS 12 generally requires the tax consequences of dividends to be
recognized in profit or loss. A similar consequential amendment has also been
made to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 2, Members’ Share in Co-operative
Entities and Similar Instrumerts.




The adoption of these amendments did not have an effect on the consolidated
financial statements. '

© Segment Assets and Liabilities (Amendments to PAS 34). This is amended to
align the disclosure requirements for segment assets and segment liabilities in the
interim consolidated financial statements with those in PFRS 8, Operating
Segments. PAS 34 now requires the disclosure of a measure of total assets and
liabilities for a particular reportable segment. In addition, such disclosure is only
required when: (a) the amount is regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker; and (b) there has been a material change from the amount
disclosed in the last annual consolidated financial statements for that reportable
segiment.

The adoption of these amendments did not have an effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Additional disclosures required by the new or revised standards and amendments io
standards were included in the consolidated financial statements, where applicable.

New or Revised Standards and Amendments to, Standards Not Vet Adopted

A number of new or revised standards and amendments to standards are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, and have not been applied in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Except as otherwise indicated, none of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

The Group will adopt the following new or revised standards and amendments to
standards on the respective effective dates:

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets (Amendments to PAS 36,
Impairment of Assets). The amendments clarify that the recoverable amount
disclosure only applies to impaired assets (or cash-generating unit); and require
additional disclosures to be made on fair value measurement on impaired assets when
the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.  The
amendments harmonize the disclosure requirement for fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use when present value techniques are used to measure the
recoverable amount of impaired assets. The adoption of the amendments is required
to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or’ after
January 1,2014. The Group does not plan to adopt these amendments early.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to PAS 32). The
amendments clarify that: (a) an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to
set-off if that right is: (i) not contingent on a future event; and (ii} enforceable both in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the entity and all counterparties; and (b) gross settlement is equivalent to net
settlement if and only if the gross settlement mechanism has features that:
(i) eliminate or result in insignificant credit and liquidity risk; and (ii) process
receivables and payables in a singie settlement process or cycle. The adoption of the
amendments is required to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2014. The Group does not plan to adopt these amendments carly.
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* Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments 1o PAS 19). The
amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to the defined
benefit plans. The objective of the amendments is to simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of vears of employee service
(i.e., employee contributions that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of
salary). The adoption of the amendments is required to be retrospeciively applied for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. Earlier application is permitted.
The Group does not plan to adopt these amendments early.

* PEFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis (2009, 2010 and 2013). PFRS 9 (2009) introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets. Under
PFRS 9 (2009), financial assets are classified and measured based on the business
model in which they are held and the characteristics of their contractual cash flows.
PFRS 9 (2010) introduces additions relating to financial liabilities. PFRS 9 (2013)
introduces the following amendments: (a) a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting
that will allow entities to better reflect their risk management aclivilies in the
consolidated financial statements; (b) changes to address the so-called ‘own credit’
issue that were already included in PFRS 9 to be applied in isolation without the need
to change any other accounting for financial instruments; and {c) removes the
January |, 2015 mandatory effective date of PFRS 9, to provide sufficient time for
the companies to make the transition to the new requirements. The IASB is cutrently
discussing some limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements and the expected credit loss impairment model to be included. Once
the deliberations -are complete, the IASB expects to publish a final version of the
standard that will include all of the phases: (a) Classification and Medsurement,
(b) Impairment, and (c) Hedge Accounting. That version of the standard will include
a new mandatory effective date. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS ¢ will have -
an effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets but
will potentially have no impact on the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities. The Group does not plan to adopt this standard early.

Restatements of Prior Year Financial Statements

The following table summarizes the impact of the adoption of amended PAS 19
(Note 30) and the finalization of the purchase price allocation on the acquisition of Petron
Malaysia in 2012 (Note 14).

Effect of
As Previously Restatement
January 1, 2011 Reported  due to PAS 19 As Restated
Statement of Changes in Equity
Retained earnings P33,748 Pl62 P33,910

Reserve for retirement plan - 344 3,414
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Effect of

As Previously Restatement

As of January 1, 2012 Reported  due to PAS 19 As Restated
Statement of Financial Position
Other noncurrent assets - net P24,383 P3.327 P27,710
Retirement bene fits liability 671 (667) 4
Deferred tax liabilities 1,819 1,198 3,017
Retained earnings 40,088 607 40,695
Reserve fot retirement plan - 2,189 2,189
For the year ended December 31,2011

Statements of Income and

Comprehensive Income
Selling and administrative expenses (7,865) 636 (7,219)
Income tax expense 2,636 19} 2,827
Overall impact on net income 8,485 445 8,930
Equity reserve for retirement plan - (1.750) (1,750)
Income tax benefit - 525 515
Overall impact on total comprehensive

income P8.472 (P780) P7,692

Adjustments
Effect of
As Effect of Restaternent
Previously Restatement  due to PFRS 3 As

December 31, 2012 Reported  due to PAS 19 (Note 14) - Restated
Statement of Financial

Paosition
Property, ptant and

equipment - net PI02,140 P - PL,971 Pi04,111
Goodwill 10,261 - (1,229) 9,032
Other noncurrent assets - net 18,252 391 - 18,643
Retirement benefits liability 7E3 270 - 983
Deferred tax [iabilities 3,045 52 46 3,143
Retained earnings 44,397 110 - 40,507
Reserve for retirement plan - 10 - 131]
Other reserves (366) - 165 (201
Non-controlling interests 16,868 (51) 531 17,348
For the year ended

December 31, 2012

Statements of Income and

Comprehensive Income
Selling and administrative

expenses (9,426) (71 - (10,137)
Income tax expense 673 (214) - 459
Overall impact on nef income 2,277 497 - 1,780
Equity reserve for relirement

plan - (3.,086) - (3,086)
Income tax benefil - 914 - 914
Overall impact on total

comprehensive income PE0O73 (P2,669) P - (P1,596)
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Effect on the Consolidated Siatement of Cash Flows for the Period Ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011. There are no material differences between the reported
and the restated consolidated statements of cash flows except for the effects of noncash
expense and the restatement of income before income tax as shown above.

The impact of the adoption of PAS 19 for the current year is as follows: increase in
relirement benefits assets by P3,069; increase in deferred tax liability by P908; increase
in increase in other comprehensive income by P2,275; increase in retirement expense by
P163 and decrease in income tax expense by P49,

The effects on both basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Increase (decrease) in basic/diluted
earnings per share (PO.01Y (P0.05) P(.04

Certain accounts in the 2012 and 2011 statements of income have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation, with respect to the reatized portion of the -
Group’s commaodity hedging transactions amounting to P§22 and P784 in 2012 and 2011,

respectively. The reclassification did not have any impact on the consolidated statements

of financial position and consolidated net income or total consolidated comprehensive

income.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
consolidated statements of financial position-when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets, recognition is done using settlement date accounting,

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received {in case
of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those
designated as at FVPL, includes transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: held-to-maturity
(HTM) investments,  AFS financial assets, financial assets at FVPL and loans and
receivables. The Group classifies its financial liabilities as either financial liabilities at
FVPL or other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets and financial Habilities at
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at
every reporting date.

‘Day 1" Profit. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the
fair value of other observable curent market transactions in the same instrument or based
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the
Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair value
(a “Day 1” profit} in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset. In cases where data used is not observable, the difference between the transaction
price and model value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become
observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1 profit amount,
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Financial Assets

Financial Assets at FVPL. A financial asset is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as
held for trading or is designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are
designated as at FVPL if the Group manages such investments and makes purchase and
sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment stralegy. Derivative instruments (including embedded
derivatives), except those covered by hedge accounting relationships, are classified under
this category.

Fimancial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term,

Financial assets may be designated by management at initial recognition -as at FVPL,
when any of the following criteria is met:

* the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or recognizing gains or losses on a
different basis;

» the assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed and their
performances are evaiuated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy; or

* the fipancial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with littte or no
analysis, that it would not be separately recognized.

The Group uses commodity price swaps to protect its margin on petroleurn products from
potential price volatility of international crude and product prices. It also enters into
shori-term forward currency contracts to hedge its currency exposure on crude oil
importations. In addition, the Parent Company has identified and bifurcated embedded
foretgn currency derivatives from certain non-financial contracts.

Derivative instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. Derivatives are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
Unrealized gains and losses from changes in fair value of forward currency contracts and
embedded derivatives are recognized under the caption marked-to-market gains (losses)
included as part of “Other income (expenses)” in the consolidated statements of income.
Unrealized gains or losses from changes in fair value of commodity price swaps are
recognized under the caption hedging gains - net included as part of “Other income
(expenses)” in the consolidated statements of income. Realized gains or losses on the
settlement of commodity price swaps are recognized under “Others” included as part of
“Cost of goods sold” in the consolidated statements of income.

The fair values of freestanding and bifurcated forward currency lransactions are
calculated by reference to current exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair values of commodity swaps are determined based on quotes obtained
from counterparty banks.

The Group’s derivative assets and financial assets at FVPL are classified under this
category (Note 7).
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Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in-an active market.
They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not
designated as AFS financiaf assets or financial assets as at FVPL.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are catried at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment in value. Any interest
earned on loans and receivables is recognized as part of “Interest income” account in the
consolidated statements of income on an accrual basis. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The periodic amortization is aiso included as part of
“Interest income™ account in the consolidated statements of income. Gains or losses are
recognized in profit or foss when loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are siated at face value. Cash
equivalents are shori-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from related
parties, long-term receivables and non-current deposits are included in this category
{Notes 6, 9, 15 and 28).

HIM Investments. HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities for which the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sells other than an
insignificant amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as AFS financial assets. After initial measurement, these investments are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment in
value. Any interest earned on the HTM investments is recognized as part of “Interest
income” account in the consolidated statements of income on an accrual basis.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The periodic
amortization is also included as part of “Interest income” account in the consolidated
statements of income. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when the HTM
investments are derecognized or impaired.

The Group has no investments accounted for under this category as of December 31,
2013 and 2012,

AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other financial asset
categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair
value and changes therein, other than impairment fosses and foreign currency differences
on AFS debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented
in the consolidated statements of changes in equity. The effective yield component of
ATS debt securities is reported as part of “Interest income™ account in the consolidated
statements of income. Dividends earned on holding AFS equity securities are recognized
as “Dividend income” when the right to receive payment has been established. When
individual AFS financial assets are either derecognized or impaired, the related
accumulated unrealized gains or losses previously reported in equity are transferred to
and recognized in profit or loss.

AFS financial assets aiso include unquoted equity instruments with fair values which

cannot be reliably determined. These instruments are carried at cost less impairment in
value, if any.
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The Group’s investments in equity and debt securities included under “Available-for-sale
financial assets™ account are classified under this category (Note 8).

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified under this category
through the fair value option. Derivative instruments (including embedded derivatives)
with negative fair values, except those covered by hedge accounting relationships, are
also classified under this category.

The Group carries finaricial liabilities at FVPL using their fair values and reports fair
value changes in profit or loss.

The Group’s derivative liabilities are classified under this category.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial labilities that are not
designated or classified as at FVPL. After initial measurement, other financial liabilities
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is
caleulated by taking into account any premium or discount and any directly attributable
transaction costs that are considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of the
liability.

The Group’s liabilities arising from its short term loans, liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product importation, trade and other payables, fong-term debt, cash bonds,
cylinder deposits and other noncurrent liabilities are included under this category
(Notes 16, 17, 18 and 20). - :

Debt issue Costs ,

Debt issue costs are considered as directly aftributable transaction cost upon initial
measurement of the related debt and subsequently considered in the caleulation of
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative Financial Instruments and .Hedging

Freestanding Derivatives

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as either: a) fair value hedges
when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability
or an unrecognized firm commitment (except for foreign currency risk); b) cash flow
hedges when hedging exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognized firm commitment; or
¢) hedges of a net investment in foreign operations.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents
the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and sfrategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which they were designated.
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Fair Value Hedge. Derivatives classified as fair value hedges are carried at fair value
with corresponding change in fair value recognized in profit or loss. The carrying
amount of the hedged asset or liability is also adjusted for changes in fair value
attributable Lo the hedged item and the gain or loss associated with that remeasurement is -
also recognized in profit or loss.

When the hedge ceases to be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued and the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial instrument is amortized
immediately.

The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if: (a) the hedging instrument
expired, sold, terminated or exercised; (b) the hedge no longer meets the criteria for
hedge accounting; or (c} the Group revokes the designation.

The Group has no outstanding derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Cash Flow Hedge. Changes in the fair value of a hedging instrument that qualifies as a
highly effective cash flow hedge are recognized in other. comprehensive income and
presented in the consolidated statements of changes in equity. The ineffective portion is
immediately recognized in profit or loss.

i the hedged cash flow results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, all gains or
losses previously recognized directly in equity are transferred from equity and included
in the initial measurement of the cost or carrying amount of the asset or liability.
Otherwise, for all other cash flow hedges, gains or losses initially recognized in equity
are transferred from equity fo profit or loss in the same period or periods during which
the hedged forecasted transaction or recognized asset or liability affects profit or loss.

When the hedge ceases to be highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that has been
reported directly in equity is retained in equity until the forecasted transaction oceurs.
When the forecasted transaction is no fonger expected to occur, any net cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group has no outstanding derivatives accounted for as a cash flow hedge as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Net Investment Hedge. Hedges of a net -investment in a foreign operation, including a
hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the net investment, are
accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge are recognized in other
comprehensive income while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recoghized in profit or loss. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative value of
any such gains and losses recorded in equity is transferred to and recognized in profit or
loss.

The Group has no hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation as of December 31,
2013 and 2012,

For derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses arising from

changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss during the year
incurred,
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Embedded Derivatives
The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host
contracts when the Group becomes a party to the contract.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative if all of the following conditions are met: a) the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics
and risks of the host contract; b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and c) the hybrid or
combined instrument is not recognized as at FVPL. Reassessment only oceurs if there is
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
. part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:

* therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either: (a) has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing .
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes the associated liability, The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on the basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
tiability is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses, at the reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a
financiai asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For financial assets carried at amortized cost such as
loans and receivables, the Group first assesses whether objective impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If no objective evidence of
impairment has been identified for a particular financial asset that was individually
assessed, the Group includes the asset as part of a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses the group for impairinent. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognized are not included in the collective impairment assessment,

Evidence of impairment for specific impairment purposes may include indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in principal or interest payments, or may enter into bankruptcy or other form
of financial reorganization intended to alleviate the financial condition of the borrower.
For collective impairment purposes, evidence of impairment may include observable data
on existing economic conditions or industry-wide developments indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the related assets.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting the cash flows is
not material, If a loan or receivable has a variable rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate, adjusted for the original credit
risk premium. For collective impairment purposes, impairment loss is computed based
on their respective default and historical loss experience.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of an
allowance account. The impairment loss for the period shall be recognized in profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial Assets. For equity instruments carried at fair value, the Group assesses at
each reporting date whether objective evidence of impairment exists. Objective evidence
of impairment includes a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity
instrument below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and ‘prolonged’ is evaluated against the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost. The Group generally regards fair value decline as being
significant when decline exceeds 25%. A decline in a quoted market price that persists
for 12 months is generally considered to be prolonged.

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between the
cost (net of any principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss, is
transferred from equity to profit or loss. Reversals of impairment losses in respect of
equity instruments classified as AFS financial assets are not recognized in profit or loss.
Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are recognized in profit or loss, if the
increase in fair value of the insirument can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment foss was recognized in profit or loss.
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In the case of an unquoted equity instrument or of a derivative asset linked to and must
be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument, for which its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
asset discounted using its historical effective rate of return on the asset.

Classification of Financial Instruments between Debt and Equity
From the perspective of the issuer, a financial instrument is classified as debt instrument
if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

® deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;

* exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavorable to the Group; or

" satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another
financial asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not

generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities

are presented gross in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Fair Value Measurements .
The Group measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at fair
value at each reporting date. '

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,
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All assets and liabilities for which Fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

* Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities:

* Level 2! inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market
data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For purposes of the fair value disclosure, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. For petroleum
products, crude oil, and tires, batleries and accessories (TBA), the net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to
complete and/or market and distribute. For materials and supplies, nef realizable value is
the current replacement cost.

For financial reporting purposes, Petron uses the first-in, first-out method in costing
petroleum products (except lubes and greases, waxes and solvents), crude oif, and other
products. Cost is determined using the moving-average method in costing lubes and
greases, waxes and solvents, materials and supplies inventories. For income tax
reporting purposes, cost of all inventories is determined using the moving-average
method.

For financial reporting purposes, duties and taxes related to the acquisition of inventories
are capitalized as part of inventory cost. For income tax reporting purposes, such duties
and taxes are treated as deductible expenses in the vear these charges are incurred.

Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the
acquisition date. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the
consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any
non-controiling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquirec at fair value or at
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred and included as part of “Selling and administrative expenses”
account in the consolidated statements of income.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and financial-
Habilities assummed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date.
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If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously heid equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured at the acquisition
date fair values and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: a) the fair value of the
consideration transferred; plus b) the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree; plus ¢) if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of
the existing equity interest in the acquiree; less d) the net recognized amount (generally
fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. When the excess is
negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Subsequently, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulaled impairment in value.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be impaired.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-
existing relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. Costs-
related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination, are expensed
as incurred. Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not
remeasured and seltlement is accounted for within equity, Otherwise, subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

= Goodwill in a Business Combination

© Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

o represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwiil is monitored
for internal management purposes; and

o isnot larger than ap operating segment determined in accordance with PFRS 8.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units, to- which the goodwill relates. Where the
recovetable amount of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Where goodwill forms part
of a cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based
on the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained. An impairment loss with respect to goodwill is not reversed.

»  ntangible Assets Acquired in a Business Combination
The cost of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition, determined using discounted cash flows as a result of the
asset being owned.

Following initial recognition, intangible asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and impairment losses, if any. The useful life of an intangible asset is
assessed to be either {finite or indefinite,
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An intangible asset with finite life is amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is-an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each reporting date. A change in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
The amortization expense on intangible asset with finite fife is recognized in profit or
loss.

Transactions under Common Control

Transactions under common control entered into in contemplation of each other, and
business combination under common control designed to achieve an overall commercial
effect are treated as a single transaction,

Transfers of assets between commonly controlled entities are accounted for using the
book value accounting,

Non-controiling Interests

The acquisitions of non-controlling inlerests are accounted for as transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result of
such transactions. Any difference between the purchase price and the net assets of the
acquired entily is recognized in equity. The adjustments to non-controlling interests are
based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.

Investments in Associates '

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policies of the
investee, but not control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are accounded for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost.
The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize the changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date, Goodwill relating
to the associafe is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither
amortized nor individually tested for impairment.

The Group’s share in the profit or loss of the associate is recognized as “Share in net
income (losses) of associates™ account in the Group’s consolidated statements of income.
Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the Group’s
proportionate interest in the associate arising from changes in the associate’s other
comprehensive income. The Group’s share of those changes is recognized in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Unrealized gains and losses resulting .
from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to
recognize an impairment loss with respect to the Group’s net investment in the associate.
At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group recalculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value. Such impairment loss is recognized as part of “Share in
net income (losses) of associates™ account in the consolidated statements of income.
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Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes
any retained investment at fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of signilicant influence and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line
with those of the Group.

Interest in a Joint Venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture, Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities requite unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s 33.33% joint venture interest in Pandacan Depot Services, Inc. (PDSI),
included under “Other noncurrent assets - net” account in the consolidated statements of
financial position, is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The interest
in joint venture is carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost plus
post-aequisition changes in the Group’s share in net income (loss) of the joint venture,
less any impairment in value. The consolidated statements of income reflect the Group’s
share in the results of operations of the joint venture presented as part of “Other income
(expenses) - others” account. The Group has no capital commitments or contingent
liabilities in relation to its interest in this joint venture.

Results of operations as well as financial position balances of PDSI were less than 1% of
the consolidated values and as such are assessed as not material; hence, not separately
disclosed.

Property. Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except land, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any accumulated impairment in value. Such cost
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the time that
cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its construction cost or
purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly attributable costs in
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also
includes any related asset retirement obligation (ARQ). Expenditures incurred after the
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are
normally recognized as an expense in the period the costs are incurred. Major repairs are
capitalized as part of property, plant and equipment only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Group and the cost of the
items can be measured reliably.

Construction in progress (CIP) represents structures under construction and is stated at
cost. This includes the costs of construction and other direct costs. Borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the construction of plant and equipment are capitalized during
the construction period. CIP is not depreciated until such time that the relevant assets are
ready for use.
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For financial reporting purposes, duties and taxes related to the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment are capitalized. For income tax reporting purposes, such duties and
taxes are treated as deductible expenses in the year these charges are incurred.

For financial reporting purposes, depreciation and amortization, which commences when
the assets are available for its intended use, are computed using the straight-line method

over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Number of Years

Buildings and related facilities 2-50

Refinery and plant equipment 5-33

Setvice stations and other equipment 11/2-33
Computers, office and motor equipment 2-20

Land and leasehold improvements 10 or the term of the lease,

whichever is shorter

For income tax reporting purposes, depreciation and amortization are computed using the
double-declining balance method.

The remaining useful lives, residual values, and depreciation and amortization methods
are reviewed and adjusted periodically, if appropriate, to ensure that such periods and
inethods of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the items of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. ‘

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when either it has been

disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the

retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Investment Property

Investment property consists of properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment property, except
for land, is measured at cost including transaction costs less accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any accumulated impairment in value. The carrying amount
includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time the cost
is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day
servicing of an investment property. Land is stated at cost less any impairtnent in value.

For financial reporting purposes, depreciation of office units is computed on a straight-
line basis -over the estimated useful lives of the assets of 20 years, For income tax
reporting purposes, depreciation is computed using the double-declining balance method,

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.
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Investment property is derecognized either when it has been disposed of or when it is -
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its
disposal, Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment property are
recognized in profit or loss in the period of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made Lo investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to
another party. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there
is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of the owner-occupation or
commencement of development with a view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the
cost of property for subsequent accounting is its carrying amount at the date of change in
use. If the property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

Intangible Assels

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost
of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.  Subsequently, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairmeit losses. Internally generated intangible
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditures are
recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the related expenditures are incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with {inite lives are amorlized over the useful life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method used for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected
useful [ife or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as
appropriate, and are freated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in profit or loss consistent
with the function of the intangible asset.

Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives of the assets:

Number of Years

Software 5.7
Franchise fee 3-10

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group has existing and pending trademark
registration for its products for a term of 10 to 20 years. It also has copyrights for its
7-kg LPG container, Gasulito with stylized letter “P” and two flames, {for Powerburn 27,
and for Petron New Logo (22 styles). Copyrights endure during the lifetime of the
creator and for another 50 years after creator’s death.
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The amount of intangible assets is included as part of “Other noncurrent assets™ in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Expenses incurred for research and development of internal projects and internally
developed patents and copyrights are expensed as incurred and are part of “Seling and
administrative expenses™ account in the consolidated statements of income.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, If
any such indication exists, and if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverabie
amounts. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale
of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset
that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. lmpairment losses
are recognized in profit or loss in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset. :

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impaitment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to .
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.
If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the.asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss.
After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization charge is adjusted in future
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful life

Cylinder Deposits

The LPG cylinders remain the property of the Group and are loaned to dealers upon
payment by the latter of an amount equivalent to 100% of the acquisition cost of the
cylinders.

The Group maintains the balance of cylinder deposits at an amount equivalent to three
days worth of inventory of its biggest dealers, but in no case lower than P200 at any
given time, to take care of possible returns by dealers.

At the end of each reporting date, cylinder deposits, shown under “Other noncurrent

liabilities™ account in the consolidated statements of financial position, are reduced for
estimated non-returns. The reduction is recognized directly to profit or loss.
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Provisiong

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past event: (b} it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and {c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be
reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognized when, and only
when, it is virtually cerfain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the
obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for
the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

The Group recognizes provisions arising from legal and/or constructive obligations
associated with the cost of dismantling and removing an item of property, plant and
equipment and restoring the site where it is located, the obligation for which the Group
incurs either when the asset is acquired or as a consequence of using the asset during a
particular year for purposes other than to produce inventories during the year.

Capital Stock
Common Shares

Common shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net
of any tax effects and any excess of the proceeds over the par value of shares issued less
any incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance, net of tax, is presented in
equity as additional paid-in capital,

Preferred Shares
Preferred shares are classified as equity if they are non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Parent Company’s option, and any dividends thereon are discretionary. Dividends
thereon are recognized as distributions within equity upon approval by the Parent
Company’s BOD.

Preferred shares are classified as a liability if they are redeemable on a specific date or at
the optien of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary. Dividends
thereon are recognized as interest expense in profit or loss as accrued.

Undated Subordinated Capital Securities

Undated subordinated capital securities are classified as equity when there is no
contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another person or entity
or to exchange financial assets or liabilities with another person or entity that is
potentially unfavorable to the issuer.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of undated subordinated capital
securities are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of tax. The proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to undated subordinated
capital securities.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the accumulated net income or losses, net of any dividend
distributions and other capital adjustments. Appropriated retained earnings represent that
portion which is restricted and therefore not available for any dividend declaration.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sale of Goods. Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade
discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, which is normally upon
delivery and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective
yield on the asset.

Dividend. Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right as a shareholder to receive the
payment is established.

Rent. Revenue from investment property is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total
rent income over the terin of the lease.

Customer Loyalty Programme. Revenue is allocated between the customer loyalty
programme and the other component of the sale. The amount allocated to the customer
loyalty programme is deferred, and is recognized as revenue when the Group has fulfilled
its obligations to supply the discounted products under the terms of the programme or
when it is no longer probable that the points under the programme will be redeemed.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized upon receipt of goods, utilization of services or at the
date they are incurred.

Expenses are also recognized when a decrease in future economic benefit related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably has arisen.
Expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between costs incurred and
the eaming of specific items of income; on the basis of systematic and rational ailocation
procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods
and the association can only be broadly or indirectly determined; or immediately when an
expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that future
economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition as an asset.

Leases .

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after the inception of the lease
only if one of the following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

{b) a renewal option is exercised or an extension is granted, unless the term of the
renewal or exiension was initially included in the lease term;

-29 .




(¢) there is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a
specific asset; or

(d} there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date
when the change in circumstances gives rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (¢) or
{d), and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b), above.

Operating Lease
Group as Lessee. Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and

benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Associaled cosls such as maintenance and insurance are expensed as
incurred.

Group as Lessor. L.eases where the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from
operating leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rent income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which
they are eamned,

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the acquisition or

construction of a qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when -
the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing costs
are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use,

Research and Development Costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product development costs incurred on an
individual project are carried forward when their future recoverability can be reasonably
regarded as assured. Any expenditure carried forward is amortized in line with the
expected future sales from the related project.

The carrying amount of development costs is reviewed for impairment annually when the
related asset is not yet in use. Otherwise, this is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,

Retirement and Other Empiloyee Benefit Costs

Petron has a tax qualified and fully funded defined benefit pension plan covering all
permanent, regular, full-time employees administered by trustee banks. Majority of its
subsidiaries have separate unfunded, non-contributory, retirement plans,

The Group’s net retirement benefits liability is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculation of defined benefit retirement obligations is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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Remeasurements of the net defined retirement obligation or asset, excluding net interest,
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income under “Equity reserve for
retirement plan”. Such remeasurements are also immediately recognized in equity under
“Reserve for retirement plan” and are not reclassified to profit or foss in subsequent
period. Net defined retirement benefit obligation or asset comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets, excluding interest and the effect of the asset ceiting, if
any. The Group determines the net interest expense or income on the net defined
retirement obligation or asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefil retirement obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-
net defined retirement obligation or asset, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit retirement obligation or asset during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss. ’

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of
a defined benefit retirement plan when the settlement occurs.

The Group has a corporate performance incentive program that aims te provide financiat
incentives for the employees, contingent on the achievement of the Group’s annual
business goals and objectives. The Group recognizes achievement of its business goals
through key performance indicators (KPls) which are used to evaluate performance of the
organization. The Group recognizes the related expense when the KPls are met, that is
when the Group is contractually obliged to pay the benefits.

The Group also provides other benefits to its employees as follows:

Savings Plan. The Group established a Savings Plan wherein eligible employees may
apply for membership and have the option to contribute 5% to 15% of their monthly base
pay. The Group, in turn, contributes an amount equivalent to 50% of the employee-
member’s contribution. However, the Group’s 50% share applies only to a maximum of
10% of the employee-member’s contribution. The Savings Plan aims to supplement
benefits upon employees’ retirement and to encourage eniployee-members to save a
portion of their earnings. The Group accounts for this benefit as a defined contribution
pension plan and recognizes a liability and an expense for this plan as the expenses for its
contribution fall due. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions after payments of the equivalent employer-share. The accumulated savings
of the employees plus the Group’s share, including earnings, will be paid in the event of
the employee’s: (a) retirement, (b) resignation after completing at least five years of
continuous services, (¢} death, or (d) involuntary separation not for cause.

Land/Home Ownership Plan. The Group established the Land/Home Ownership Plan, an
integral part of the Savings Plan, to extend a one-time financial assistance to Savings
Plan members in securing housing loans for residential purposes.

Foreign Currency

Foreign Currency Translations _

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranstated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss
on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at
the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the year,
and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of
the reporting date. '
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Nonmonetary assets and nonmonetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate
at the date that the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary items in a foreign currency
that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss,
except for differences arising on the refranslation of AFS financial assets, a financial
liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation that is
effective, or qualifying cash flew hedges, which are recognized in other comprehensive
income,

Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operatlons including goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to Philippine peso at exchange rates at
the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations, excluding foreign
operations in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to Philippine peso at average
exchange rates for the period.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income, and
presented in the “Other reserves” account in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. However, if the operation is not a wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant
proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling
interests. When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative
amount is reattributed to non-control ling interests. When the Group disposes of only part
of its investment in an associate or joint venture that inctudes a foreign operation while
retammg significant influence or joint control, the relevant propornon of the cumulative
amount is reclassified to proﬁt or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses
arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a
foreign operation and are recognized in other comprehensive income, and presented in
the “Other reserves” account in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Taxes .
Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goedwill or of an

asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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= with respect to taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits - Minitmum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) and unused tax
losses - Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCOQ), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized, except:

* where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of .the ftransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= with respect to deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
. allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expeéted to apply
in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Group takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due.
The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years
based on its assessment of many factors, including imterpretation of tax laws and prior
experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a
series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that
causes the Group to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax
liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such a
determination is made.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right

exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the
amount of VAT, except:

* where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or pavable to, the taxation auihority is included
as part of receivables or payables in the consolidated statements of {inancial position.

Assets Held for Sale

Noncurrent assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected
to be recovered primarily through sale or distribution rather than through continuing use,
are classified as held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sale or
distribution, the assets, or components of a disposal group, are remeasured in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter, the assets or disposal groups are
generally measured at the Jower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to
remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to
inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment
properties or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale
or distribution and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognized in
profit or toss. Gains are not recognized in excess-of any cumulative impairment losses.

Intangible assets, investment property, and property, plant and equipment once classified
as held for sale or distribution are not amortized or depreciated. In addition, equity
accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified as held for sale.

When an asset no longer meets the criteria fo be classified as held for sale or distribution,
the Group shall cease to classify such as held for sale. Transfers from assets held for sale
or distribution are measured at the lower of its carrying amount before the asset was
classified as held for sale or distribution, adjusted for any depreciation that would have
been recognized had the asset not been classified as held for sale or distribution, and its
recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.
Transactions between related parties are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with non-related parties.

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the period attributable to equity
hoiders of the Parent Company, net of dividends on preferred shares, by the weighted
average number of issued and outstanding common shares during the period, with
retroactive adjustment for any stock dividends declared.
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For the purpose of computing diluted EPS, the net income for the period attributable to
owners of the Parent Company and the weighted-average number of issued and
outstanding common shares are adjusted for the effects of all potential ditutive debt or
equity instruments.

Operating Segments

The Group’s operating segments are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic
business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial
information on operating segments is presented in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Chief Executive Officer (the “chief operating decision maker™) reviews
management reports on a regular basis.

The measurement policies the Group used for segment reporting under PFRS §, are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial statements. There have been no changes
in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss from prior
periods. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices. :

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between
business segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated in consolidation,

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, They

are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. - Contingent assets are
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events Afler the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s consolidated
{inancial position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated
financial. statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements when material,

4. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with
PFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses reported in the consolidated financial statements at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions could result in
outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the affected
asset or liability in the future,

Judgments and estimates are continually cvaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the
Judgments and estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

=35 -




Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

Functional Currency. The Parent Company has determined that its functional currency is
the Philippine peso. Ht is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Parent Company operates,

Operating Lease Commitments - Group as Lessor/Lessee. The Group has entered into
various lease agreements either as lessor or a lessee. The Group had determined that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties leased out on
operating leases while the significant risks and rewards for properties leased from third
parties are retained by the lessors.

Rent income recognized in the consolidated staiements of income amounted to PI,155,
P977,P431 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively,

Rent expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income amounted to P1,149,
P829, P553 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Evaluating Control over its Investees. Although the Parent Company owns less than
50% of the voting rights on some of its investees, management has determined that the
Parent Company controls these entities by virtue of its exposure and rights to variable
returns from its involvement in these investees and its ability to affect those returns’
through its power over the investees.

Classifying Financial Instruments. The Group exercises judgments in classifying a
financial instrument, or its component patts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability, or an equily instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset or liability. The substance
of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Determining Fair Values of Financial Instruments. Where the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, they are delerriined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The Group uses
judgments to select from a variety of valuation models and make assumptions regarding
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer
dated financial instruments. The input to these models is taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair value.

Distinction between Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property. The
Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
Jjudgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independent of the other assets held by the Group. Owner-occupied properties generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to the property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.
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Some propetties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production and supply of goods and
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold separately
{or leased out separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately, If the portion cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant pottion is heid for use in the production or
supply of goods or services for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify
as investment property. The Group considers each property separately in making its
judgment.

Taxes. Significant judgment is required in determining current and deferred tax expense.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income tax and deferred tax
expenses in the year in which such determination is made.

Beginning July 2008, in the determination of the Group’s current taxable income, the
Group has an option fo either apply the optional standard deduction (OSD) or continue to
claim itemized standard deduction. The Group, at each taxable year from the effectivity
of the taw, may decide-which option to apply; once an option to use QSD is made, it shall
be irrevocable for that particular taxable year. For 2013, 2012 and 2011 the Group opted
to continue claiming itemized standard deductions except for Petrogen and Las Lucas
Construction and Development Corporation (LLCDC), a subsidiary of NVRC, as it opted
to apply OSD.

Contingencies. The Group currently has several tax assessments, legal and administrative
claims. The Group’s estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these assessments
and claims has been developed in consultation with in-house as well as outside legal
counsel handling the prosecution and defense of these matters and is based on an analysis
ol potential results. The Group currently does not believe that these tax assessments,
legal and administrative claims will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position and consolidated financial performance. It is possible, however, that
future financial performance could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or
in the effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings. No accruals were made in
relation to these proceedings (Note 39),

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Allowance for Impairment Losses on Trade and Other Receivables. Allowance for
impairment is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for potentially
uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is based on past collection experience
and other factors that may affect collectibility. An evaluation of receivables, designed to
identify potential changes to allowance, is performed regularly throughout the year.
Specifically, in coordination with the National Sales Division, the Finance Division
ascertains customers who are unable to meet their financial obligations. In these cases,
the Group’s management uses sound judgment based on the best available facts and -
circumstances included but not limited to, the length of relationship with the customers,
the customers’ current credit status based on known market forces, average age of
accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The amount of
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impairment loss differs for each year based on available objective evidence for which the
Group may consider that it will not be able to collect some of its accounts. Impaired
accounts receivable are written off when identified to be worthless after exhausting all
collection efforts. An increase in allowance for impairment of trade and other receivable
would increase the Group’s recorded selling and administrative expenses and decrease
current assefs. :

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables amounted to P3, P13 and P75 in 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively (Notes 9 and 23). Receivables written-off amounted to P21
in 2013 and P1 in 2012 (Note 9).

The carrying value of receivables, amounted to P67,667 and P57,731 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Note 9).

Net' Realizable Values of Inventories. In determining the net realizable values of

inventories, management takes into account the most reliable evidence available at the

times the estimates are made. Future realization of the carrying amount of inventories of .
P51,721 and P49,582 as at the end of 2013 and 2012, respectively (Note 10), is affected

by price changes in different market segments for crude and petroleum products. Both

aspects are considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may cause significant

adjustments to the Group’s inventories within the next financial year.

In 2013, the Group recognized an inventory write-down amounting to P702 (Note 10).

Allowance for Inventory Obsolescence. The allowance for inventory obsolescence
consists of collective and specific valuation allowance. A collective valuation allowance .
is established as a certain percentage based on the age and movement of stocks. In-case
there is write-off or disposal of siow-moving items during the year, a reduction in the
allowance for inventory obsolescence is made. Review of allowance is done every
quarter, while a revised set-up or booking is posted at the end of the year based on
evaluations or recommendations of the proponents. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any year would therefore differ based on the judgments or estimates made.

In 2013, the Group provided an additional allowance amounting to P33 (Note 10).

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The Group carries certain
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgments. Significant components of fair value measurement
were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.., foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, volatility rates). The amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group
utilized different valuation methodologies and assumptions. Any change in the fair value
of these financial assets and financial liabilities would affect profit or loss and equity.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are discussed in Note 35.

Estimated Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets with Finite
Useful Lives and Investmenr Property. The Group estimates the useful lives of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets with finite useful lives and investment property
based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets with finite
useful lives and investment property are reviewed periodically and are updated if
expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or
comtnercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.
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In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and investment property is based on collective assessment
of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is
possible, however, that future financial performance could be materially affected by
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts
and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets with finite useful lives and investment property would
increase recorded cost of goods sold and selling and administrative expenses and
decrease noncurrent assets,

There is no change in estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and investment property based on management’s review at
the reporting date.

Accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets with finite useful lives and investment property amounted to P60,592 and P55,096
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Notes 12, 13 and 15). Property, plant
and equipment, net of accumnulated depreciation and amortization amounted to P141,647
and P104,111 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Note 12). Investment
property, net of accumulated depreciation amounted to P1i4 and PII5 as of
December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively (Note 13). Intangible assets with finite useful
lives, net of accumulated amortization, amounted to P322 and P411 as of December 31,
2013 and 2012 respectively (Note 15).

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are assessed as impaired when
there has been a significant or prolonged decline-in the fair value below cost or where
other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgment. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including
normal volatility in share price for quoted equities, and the future cash flows and the
discount factors for unquoted equities.

There were no impairment losses recognized in 2013 and 2012,

The carrying amount of AFS financial assets amounted to P915 and P91l as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Note §).

Fair Value of Investment Property. The fair value of investment property presented for
disclosure purposes is based on market values, being the estimated amount for which the
property can be sold, or based on a most recent sale transaction of a similar property
within the same vicinity where the investment property is located.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the valuations are prepared by
considering the aggregate estimated future cash flows expected to be received from
leasing out the property. A yield that reflects the specific risks inherent in the net cash
flows is then applied to the net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation.

Estimated fair values of ‘investment property amounted to P156 and P142 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (Note 13).

Impairment of Goodwill. The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
annually. This requires the estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating value in use requires management to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and to choose
a suitable discount rate to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on value in use using
discounted cash flows (DCF). Assumptions used in the DCF include 3% terminal growth
rate and 8% discount rate (Note 14).

Ne impairment losses were recognized in 2013 and 2012,

Management belicves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount is based would not cause its carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount.

The calculations of value in use are most sensitive to the projected sales volume, selling
price and improvement in the gross profit margin, and discount rate.

Acquisition Accounting. The Group accounts for acquired businesses using the
acquisition method of accounting which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are recognized at the date of acquisition based on their respective fair values.

The application of the acquisition method requires certain estimates and assumptions
especially concerning the determination of the fair values of acquired property, plant and
equipment at the date of the acquisition. Moreover, the useful lives of the acquired
property, plant and equipment have to be determined. Accordingly, for significant
acquisitions, the Group obtains assistance from valuation specialists. The valuations are
based on information available at the acquisition date.

The Group has completed the purchase price allocation exercise on acquisitions made in
2012 (Note 14). Total combined carrying amounts of goodwill arising from business
combinations amounted to 9,386 and 9,032 as at December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively (Note 14).

Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets
to be utilized. The Group’s assessment on the recognition of deferred tax assets on
deductible temporary differences and carry forward benefits of MCIT and NOLCO is
based on the projected taxable income in the following perioads.

Deferred tax assets amounted to P{162 and P78 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively (Note 27).

Impairment of Other Non-financial Assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be
performed on investments in associates, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and investment property when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Determining the recoverable amount of assets
requires the estimation of cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use
and ultimate disposition of such assets. While it is believed that the assumptions used in
the estimation of recoverable amounts are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable
amounts and any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on
financial performance. )

There were no impairment losses on other non-financial assets recognized in 2013, 2012
and 2011.
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The aggregate carrying amount of investments in associates, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets with finite useful lives and investment property amounted to
P142,968 and P106,278 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively {Notes 11, 12,
{3 and 13).

Present Value of Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation. The present value of defined
benefit retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a 'number of assumptions. These assumptions are described in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and include discount rate and salary
increase rate, '

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. It is the
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to seftle the retirerent liabilities. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates on government bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid. The terms to
maturity of these bonds should approximate the terms of the related retirement liability.

Other key assumptions for retirement liabilities are based in part on current market
condilions.

While it is believed that the Group’s assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in assumptions may
materiaily affect the Group’s retirement benefits liability.

Asset Retirement Obligation. The Group has an AROQ arising from leased service stations,
depots, blending plant, and franchised store and locator in Carmen. Determining ARO
requires estimation of the costs of dismantling, installations and restoring leased
properties to their original condition. The Group determined the amount of ARO by
obtaining estimates of dismantling costs from the proponent responsible for the operation
of the asset, discounted at the Group’s current credit-adjusted risk-free rateranging from
3.94% to 9.42% depending on the life of the capitalized costs. While it is believed that
the assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are reasonable, significant changes
in these assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or obligation in future
periods.

The Group also has an ARO arising from its refinery. However, such obligation is not -
expected to be settled for the foreseeable future and therefore a reasanable estimate of the
obligation cannot be determined and assessed to be insignificant. Thus, the ARO
amounting to P1,004 and P997 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, covers
only the Group’s leased service statiens, depots, blending plant, and franchised store and
locator in Carmen (Note 19).

5. Assets Held for Sale

Petron bad properties consisting of office units focated at Petron Mega Plaza with a floor
area of 21,216 square meters covering the 28th - 44th floors and 206 parking spaces. On
December 1, 2010, the BOD approved the sale of these properties to provide cash flows
for various projects. Accordingly, the investment property, was presented as “Assets held
for sale™ in 2010, On May 2, 2001, the Parent Company sold the 32nd floor (with total
floor area of 1,530 square meters) and [0 parking spaces, with a total book value of P57.
In September 2011, it was reclassified back to “Investment property” account in view of
the fact that the remaining floors are no longer held for sale and have already been
occupied by tenants (Note §3). '
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During the latter part of 2012, a prospective buyer tendered an offer to purchase the
remaining Petron Mega Plaza units and pdrking spaces. The management made a counter -
offer in December 2012 effectively rendering the Petron Mega Plaza units and parking
spaces, with a carrying amount of P588 as held for sale and consequently reclassified it to
“Assets held for sale” account in the consolidated statements of financial position in 2012
{Note 13}. The sale was consummated by the second quarter of 2013 and a gain of P580
was recognized in the consotidated statements of income and comprehensive income in
2013.

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

Note 2013 2012
Cash on hand P4,042 P4,932
Cash in banks 6,747 5,788
Short-term placements 39,609 16,245

34,35 P50,398 $26,965

Cash in banks earn annual interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term
placements include demand deposits which can be withdrawn at anytime depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn annual interest (Note 26) at the
respective short-term placement rates ranging from 0.01% to 5.00% in 2013 and 2012,

7. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

This account consists of:

Note 20613 2012

Proprietary membership shares : 34,35 P117 P145
Marketable equity securities 34, 35 - 2
Derivative assets ) 34 35 666 39
P783 P186

The fair values presented have been determined directly by reference to published prices
quoted in an active market, except for derivaiive assets which are based on inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable (Note 35).

Changes in fair value recognized in 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to (P29), (P22) and
P1, respectively (Note 26).
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8. Avaiiable—fqr-Sale Finaneial Assets

This account conststs of:

2013 2012

Government securities P757 P804
Other debt securiiies 158 107
915 911

Less: current portion 458 51
P457 P36d

Petrogen’s government securities are deposited with. the Bureau of Treasury in
accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Code, for the benefit and security of its
policyholders and creditors. These investments bear fixed annual interest rates ranging
from 6% to 8.875% in 2013 and 2012 (Note 26).

Ovincor's ROPY bonds are maintained at the HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited and carried
at fair value with fixed annual interest rates of 8.250% to 8.875%.

The breakdown of investments by contractual maturity dates as of December 31 follows:

Note 2013 2012

Pue in one year or less ‘ P458 P51
Due after one year through five years 457 - 860
' 34,35 P915 P11

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of avaiiable-for-sale financial assets as of -
December 31 follows:

. 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year P91l P1,036
Additions - 56 -
Disposals : (50 (45)
Amortization of premium (36) (19)
Fair value gain (loss) (29 10
Currency lranslation adjustment 63 {(71)
Balance at end of year P915 P91l
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9, Trade and Other Receivables

This account consists of

Noie 2013 2012
Trade 34 P26,616 pP22.276
Related parties - trade 28 34 3,158 1,949
Allowance for impairment foss on trade
receivables {972) (1,073)
28,802 23,152
Government 27,856 27,784
Related parties - non-trade 28 5,536 4,763
Others 5,767 2,327
Allowance for impairment loss on non-trade -
receivables (294) (295)
38,865 34,579
34, 35 P67,667 P57,731

Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are generally on a 45-day term.

Government receivables pertain to duty and tax claims, such as duty drawback, VAT and
specific tax claims as well as subsidies receivable froin the Government of Malaysia
under the Automatic Pricing Mechanism. The amount includes receivables over 30 days
but less than one year amounting to P6,296 and P14,788 as of December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The filing and the collection of ¢laims is a continuous process and is
closely monitored.

Related parties - non-trade consists of an advance made by the Parent Company to
PCERP.

" Receivables - others significantly consist of receivables relating to creditable withholding
tax, tax certificates on product replenishment and duties.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2013 and
2012 is shown below:

Note 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year Pr1,371 P1,374
Additions 23 3 13
Write off 2n (1)
Interest income on accretion (2) (5)
Acguisition of subsidiaries - 46
Currency translation adjustment - (2)
Reversals (73) (54)
Balance at end of year 1,278 1,371
Less noncurrent portion for long-term
receivables 15 12 3
P1,266 Pl,368
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the age of past due but not impaired trade accounts
receivable (TAR} is as foliows (Note 34):

Past Due but not Impaired

Within 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 90
30 days Days Days Days Total
December 31, 2013
Reseller P240 P49 P8 P12 rigg
Lubes - 8 3 i 12
Gasul 6 i3 2 1 42
Industrial 301 1,975 1,260 1,014 4,550
Others 103 76 12 110 301
P650 P2,141 Pi,285 Pr1,138 P5,214
December 31, 2012
Reseller P115 P7 P2 P17 Pldl
Lubes i 6 3 - 10
Gasul 14 35 1§ 32 92
Industrial 40 60 372 207 679
Others 128 9 418 289 844
P29% . Pi17 P806 P545 P1,766

No allowance for impairment is necessary with regard to these past due but unimpaired
trade receivables based on past coliection experience. There are ne significant changes in
credit quality. As such, these amounts are still considered recoverable.

10. Inventories

This accounti consists of*

- 2013 2012

Crude oil and others (2013 - at NRV; 2012 - at cost) P25,509 P22,182

Petroleum {2013 - at NRV; 2012 - at cost) 24,590 25,955
TBA products, materials and supplies:

Materials and supplies - at NRV 1,584 1,418

TBA - at cost 32 27

Ps1,721 P49,582

The cost of these inventories amounted to P52,835 and P49.969 as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

If the Group used the moving-average method (instead of the first-in, first-out method,
which is the Group’s policy), the cost of petroleum, crude oil and other products would
have decreased by P1,398 and P921 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Research and development costs {Note 23) on these products constituted the expenses
incurred for internal projects in 2013 and 2012.

Inventories (including distribution or transshipment costs) charged to cost of goods sold

amounted to P432,779, P398,102 and P244,937 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
{Note 22}.
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The movements in allowance for write-down of inventories to NRV and mventory
obsolescence at the beginning and end of 2013 and 2012 follow:

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year : P387 P387
Provisions due to:
Write-downs ) 702 -
Obsolescence 33 -
Reversals (8 - -
P1,114 P387

The provisions and reversals are included as part of “Cost of goods sold”” account in the
consolidated statements of income (Note 22).

11I. Investments in Associates

This account consists of:

2013 2012
Acquisition Cost
Balance at beginning of year P1,943 P2,796
Additions - . 507
Reclassifications (1,238) (1.360)
Balance at end of year 705 o 1,943
Share in Net Income (Losses)
Balance at beginning of year (362) (291}
Share in net income (loss) during the year 110 (11)
Reclassifications 372 "
Balance at end of year 180 (302)
P885 P1.641

Investments in associates pertain to investments in the following entities:

Petrochemical Asia (HK) Limited (PAHL)

PAHL is a company incorporated in Hong Kong in March 2008. As of
December 31, 2012, it has an authorized capital of Hong Kong Dollar (HK$) 74922
miilion for a total of 823,000,000 shares, consisting of 585,000,000 ordinary A shares at
HK$1 par vatue per share and 238,000,000 ordinary B shares at HK$0.69 par value per
share. Of this, 692,795,031 shares are outstanding. PAHL indirectly owns, among other
assets, a 160,000 metric ton-polypropylene production plant in Mariveles, Bataan.

On March 13, 2010, the Parent Company acquired 182,000,000 ordinary A shares or
40% of the outstanding shares of PAHI from Vantage Stride (Mauritius) Limited
(“Vantage Stride”).

On June 23, 2010, PAHL issued 102,142,858 new ordinary B shares to another investor,
which reduced the Parent Company’s ownership in PAHL to 33%.

On December 31, 2012, PAHL issued to the Parent Company 135,652,173 ordinary B
shares which increased the Parent Company’s ownership in PAHL to 45.85%.
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PAHL commenced operation in the first quarter of 2011.
As of December 31, 2012, cost of investment in PAHL amounted to P1,238.

As a resuit of the adoption of PFRS 10 starting January 1, 2013, the Group reassessed
whether it has control over PAHL. Based on management’s assessment, by virtue of the
extent of the Group’s participation in the BOD and management of PAHL, the Group
has: (i) power over PAHL, (ii} it is exposed and has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with PAHL; and (iii) it has the ability to use its power over PAHL to affect
the amount of PAHL’s returns. Accordinhgly, as allowed under the transitional provisions
of PFRS 10, the Group applied acquisition accounting on PAHL beginning
Janvary 1, 2013 (Note 14f) as it is impracticable to apply retrospectively from the
acquisition date.

LEC

On August 3, 2010, the Parent Company together with Two San Isidro SIAI Assets, Inc.
(Two San Isidro), formed LEC with an authorized capital stock of P3,400. Out of its
authorized capitalization, P850 was subscribed, of which P213 was paid up. The Group
then owned 40% of LEC, while Two San Isidro owned the remaining 60%.

In 2011, the Parent Company infused P1,147 to LEC to fully pay its 40% equity share.

In January 2012, LEC became wholly ewned by the Parent Company when it purchased
the 60% equity share of Two San Isidro in LEC. Consequently, LEC was consolidated
from January 2012 (Note 14d).

Manila North Harbour Port Inc (MNHPT}

On January 3, 2011, Petron entered into a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement with
Harbour Centre Port Terminal, Inc. for the purchase of 35% of the outstanding and issued
capital stock of MNHPIL.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the cost of investment in MNHPI amounted to P705.

Following are the unaudited condensed financial information of MNHPL in 2013 and
PAHL and MNHP! in 2012:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

MNHPI MNHPI - PAHL
Country ol incorporation Philippines Philippines Hong Kong
Percentage of ownership 35% 35% 45.85%
Current assets P1,297 P2,519 P2,414
Noncurrent assets 6,950 4,218 3,130
Current liabilities (1,198) (998) (2,393)
Noncurrent liabilities (5,544) (4,573} (1,862)
Net assets P1,505 PI 166 P1,349
Sales P1,677 Pi,412 4,897
Net income (loss) P291 P156 (P130)
Other comprehensive i income - - 20
Total comprehensive income (loss) P291 P156 (PG
Share in net income (loss) Pi1¢ P58 Pe%)
Share in net assets P27 P408 P619
Goodwill 358 367 247
Carrying amount of investments in
associates ) Pr8s8s P775 P866
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment

This account consists of:

Service  Computers,

Buildings . Refinery Statigns  Office and Lanid and
and Related  ami Plant  and Otker Motor Leaseheold  Construction
Facilities Equipment Equipment  Equipment Improvements In-progress Total

Cost
January t, 2612 P14.175 P37.810 P6,069 P3,070 P5,525 P18,168 184,817
Additions 57 57 61 36 461 40,8%% 41,848
sposalsfreclassifications/

acquisition of subsidianes,

as restated (Note 14) 8,562 11,356 §.446 793 5932 (1,463} 33,626
Currency translation

adjustment . (337 {480) (300) (37) (164} (10} {1,328)
Drecember 3!, 2012, as .

restated (Note 14} 22,457 48,743 14,276 4,142 11,754 57,593 158,963
Additions 869 G0 . 831 88 . 243 49,494 51,585
Disposalsfrectassifications/

acquisition of subsidiaries 4,081 T 5te {124) 265 (F4,741) {9,238)
Currency translalion

adjustment 435 73 52 51 40 (16) 595
December 31, 2013 27,862 49,647 15,669 4,E57 14,302 92,268 201,905
Accunmulated Depreciation

and Amortization
January 1, 2012 8,229 18,578 4,222 1,380 | 462 - 34,371
Additions 1,024 2336 977 296 57 - 4,690
Disposals/reclassifications 4,271 1510 4,131 a01 (4) - 16,509
Currency translation

adjustment (181} (329) (178) (30) - - (718)
Deceber 31, 2012 13,343 28,095 9,152 2,747 1,515 - 54,852
Additions 1316 2,389 1175 313 o6 - 3,253
Drisposalsfreclassifications/ ‘ .

agquisition of subsidiaries - 1,021 (251) (687) (i72) I8 - (71}
Cureency transtation

adjustinent i29 52 : 33 g . 1 - 224
December 31, 2013 15,803 30,285 9,673 2,397 1,600 - 60,258
MNei Book Vailue
Becember 31, 2012 P9,114  P20,648 15,124 P1,395 P10,239 P57,591  PlO4,I1I
December 31, 2013 2,059 Pi9,362 5,996 Pi,260 710,702 92,268 P141,647

Interest capitalized in 2013 and 2012 amounted to P3,529 and P886, respectively.
Capitalization rate used for borrowings was at 6,.22% and 5.71% in 2013 and 2012
respectively (Note 18).

£

No impairment loss was required to be recognized in 2013 and 2012.

Capital Commitments
As of December 31, 2013, the Group has outstanding commitments to acquire property,
plant and equipment amounting to P4,698,

S48 -




13. Investment Property

The movements and balances as of and for the years ended December 31 follow:

Note Land  Office Units Total
Cost )
January [, 2012 Pioo P963 P1,063
Reciassifications. 5 - (938) (938)
December 31, 2012 and 2013 100 25 125
Accumulated Depreciation
January 1, 2012 . - 269 269
Depreciation during the year - 9] 91
Reclassifications 5 - (350) (350}
December 31, 2012 - 10 - 0
Depreciation during the year - 1 1
December 31, 2013 - 11 11
Net Book Value
December 31, 2012 P00 P15 P115
December 31, 2013 P10o0 P14 Pii4

The Group’s investment property consists of office units located at Petron Mega Plaza
(classified as “Assets held for sale” in 2012) (Note 5), property located in Tagaytay and
parcels of land in various locations. Petron Mega Plaza was sold during the second
quarter-of 2013 (Note 5). '

Estimated fair value of the Tagaytay property based on the most recent appraisal made
amounted to P22 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The fair value was calculated using
market approach.

The Group’s parcels of land are located in Metro Manila and some major provinces. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the aggregate fair market values of the properties
amounted to P134 and P120, respectively, determined by independent appraisers, is
higher than their carrying values, considering recent market transactions and specific
conditions related to the parcels of land as determined by NVRC.

The fair market value of investment property has been categorized as Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy., .

Rent income earned from office units amounted to P40, P85 and P58 in 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively,
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t4. Acquisition of Subsidiaries and Goodwill

The following are the developments relating to the Parent Company’s investments in
subsidiaries in 2013 and 2012:

a.

PGL

On February 24, 2012, Petron acquired PGL, a company incorporated under the laws
of the British Virgin Islands, and subscribed to an initial capital of [,000 common
shares with par value of US$!. Subsequent to this, PGL allotted additional
(i) 20,000,000, (ii) 11,170,180, (iii) 10,874,028 and (iv) 7,576,968 common shares to
Petron with par value of US$1 on March 9, 2012, September 13, 2012, March 13,
2013, and September 12, 2013, respectively.

Other than the common shares, PGL issued 150,000,000 cumulative, non-voting,
non-participating and non-convertible preferred shares series A and 200,000,000
cumulative, non-voting, non-participating and non-convertible preferred shares series
B at an issue price equal to the par value of each share of US$! on March 14, 2012 to
a third party investor.

There was no goodwill on the acquisition of PGL in 2012.
Petron OQil and Gas International Sdn. Bhd. (POG1)

On March 30, 2012, the Parent Company’s indirect offshore subsidiary, POGI,
completed the acquisition of 65% of Esso Malaysia Berhad (EMB), and 100% of
ExxonMobil Malaysia Sdn Bhd (EMMSB) and ExxonMobil Borneo Sdn Bhd
(EMBSB) for an aggregate purchase price of US$577.3 million.

In 2012, the Group used provisionary fair values of the identifiable net assets in

calculating the goodwill as at the acquisition date. 1n 2013, the Group has completed

its purchase price allocation-exercise. As a result, the Group restated the amounts of

net assets acquired, non-controlling interest and goodwill recognized in 2012, in
accordance with PFRS 3.
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The following summarizes the final recognized amounts of assets acquired and _
liabilities assumed as of acquisition date:

(As restated)

Assets

Cash and cash equivatents 5,633

Trade and other receivables - net 12,811

Inventories 13,160

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 314

Property, plant and equipment - net 17,199

Deferred tax assets 28

Other noncurrent assets - net 6,273

Liabilities

Short-term loans (4,195)
Liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importation (16,360)
Trade and other payables (1,934)
Income tax payable (64)
Long-term debt including current portion (10,123
Deferred tax liabilities ' (1,164)
Other noncurrent liabilities (760)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value P20,878

Goodwilt was recognized based on the final amounts of net assets acquired as
follows:

Provisionary  Final Amounts
Amounts (As Restated)

Total cash consideration transferred P25,928 P24,799
Non-controlling interest measured at

proportionate interest in identifiable net assets 3,584 5,445
Total identifiable net assets at fair value (18,873) (20,878)
Goodwill ' P10,639 P9,357

POGI also served the notice of mandatory general offer (MGQ) to acquire the
remaining 94,500,000 shares representing 35% of the total voting shares of EMB for
RM3.59 per share from the public. The Unconditional Mandatory Take-Over Offer
was closed on May 14, 2012. As a result of the MGO, POGI was able to acquire an
additienal 22,679,063 shares from the public and increased its interest in EMB to
73.4%.

Consequently, the Group recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of
P1,253 and an increase in other reserves of P165,

On April 23, 2012, the Cotpanies Commission of Malaysia (CCM) approved the
change of name of EMMSB to Petron Fuel International Sdn Bhd and of EMBSB to
Petron Oil (M) Sdn Bhd. Thereafter, on July 11,2012, the CCM approved the change
of name of EMB to Petron Malaysia Refining & Marketing Bhd.
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c. FParkville Estates and Development Corp. (PEDC)
In 2012, NVRC, a subsidiary, acquired 100% of PEDC.

The follewing summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

Property, plant and equipment - net Pi117
Trade and other payables ] (5)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value P112

Goodwill was recognized based on the amounts of net assets acquired as follows:

Total cash consideration transfetred : P132
Total identifiable net assets at fair value {112)
Goodwill P20

There was no adjustment on net assets acquired and goodwill upon finalization of the
purchased price allocation exercise in 2013,

d. LEC

In January 2012, the Parent Company acquired from Two San Isidro - SIAI Assets,
Inc. the latter’s shares in LEC. Consequently, LEC was consolidated from January .
2012. :

On June 29, 2012, the SEC approved the decrease of capital stock of LEC from
P3,400 divided into 34,000,000 shares with par value of P100.00 each to P1 divided
into 10,000 shares with par value of P100.00 each.

The primary purpose of LEC is to build, operate, maintain, sell and lease power
generation plants, facilities, equipment and other related assets and generally engage
in the business of power generation and sale of electricity generated by its facilities,

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and Habilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

Asseis

Cash and cash equivalents P3,514

Trade and other receivables - net 2

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 39

Other noncurrent assets - net 35

Liabilities

Trade and other payables (154)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value P3,436

The fzir value of the frade and other receivables amounts to P2. None of the
receivables has been impaired and it is expected that the full amount can be collected.

Total identifiable net assets at fair value is equal to the consideration of the purchase
made by the Parent Company. i
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Mariveles Landco Corporation (MLC)

On July 26, 2012, NVRC entered into an agreement for the acquisition of 60% of the
outstanding capital stock of MLC for P28,

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date:

Assets |

Trade and other receivables - net P10
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2
Property and equipment - net . 64
Liabilities

Trade and other payables (58)
Long-term debt (36)
Total identifiable net Iiabilities at fair value (r18)

Goodwill was recognized based on the fair value of net assets acquired as follows:

Total cash consideration and liability assumed P28
Non-controlling interest measured at proportionate

interest in identifiable net liabilities g
Total identiftable net liabilities at fair value 18
Goodwill ' : P39

There was no adjustment on net assets acquired and goodwill upon finalization of the
purchased price allocation exercise in 2013,

PAHL

Although the Group owns less than half of the voting power of the PAHL,
management has assessed, in accordance with PFRS 10, that the Group has control
over PAHL on a de facto basis. In accordance with the transitional provision of
PFRS 10, the Group applied acquisition accounting on its investment in PAHL from
the beginning of the current period.

The following summarizes the recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities
agsumed as of January 1, 2013:

- Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P432
Trade and other receivables - net 637
Inventories 1,048
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 272
Property, plant and equipment - net 2,863
Deferred tax assets 70
Other noncurrent assets - net 164
Liabilities
Short-term loans (1,792)
Liabilities for crude oil and petroleum product importation (1,524)
Trade and other payables (869)
Other noncurrent liabilities 2
Total identifiable net asseis at fair value P1,239
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Goodwill was recognized based on the fair value of net assets acquired as follows:

Carrying amount of investments in PAHL at

January 1, 2013 P866
Non-controlling interest measured at proportionate

interest in identifiable net assets 671
Total identifiable net assets at fair value (1,239
Goodwill P298

g South Luzon Prime Holdings Inc. (SLPHI)

On April 5, 2013, NVRC acquired 100% interest in SLPHI, a domestic company
engaged in real estate development business. The acquisition is considered. as an
asset deal.

k. MRGVeloso Holdings Inc. (MHI)

On June 13, 2013, NVRC acquired 100% interest in MHI, a domestic company
engaged in real estate development business. The acquisition is considered as an
asset deal.

i.  Abreco Realty Corp. (ARC)
On August 23, 2013, NVRC acquired 100% interest in ARC, a domesiic company

engaged in real estate development business. The acquisition is considered as an
asset deal. :

The movements and balances of goodwill as at and for the years ended December 3]
follow:

_ 2012
- (As restated -
2013 Note 3)

Balance at beginning of year P9,032 p -
Additions 298 9416
Translation adjusiments 56 (384
Balance at end of year P9,386 9,032

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Petron Malaysia is allocated at the POGI Group
cash generating unit (CGU) instead of each individual acquiree company’s CGU as it is
expected that the POGI Group CGU will benefit from the synergies created from the
acquiree companies in combination, The remaining goodwill is allocated to each
individual acquiree company.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined based on value in use {VIU).
The VIU is based on cash flows projections for five (5) years using a terminal growth
rate of 3% and discount rate of 8%. The terminal growth rate is determined based on
projected annual gross domestic product (GDP) growth (at constant prices) for four (4)
years. The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) using
the Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) by taking into consideration the debt equity
capital structure and cost of debt of comparable companies and cost of equity based on
appropriate market risk premium.

-54 -




The financial projection used in the VIU calculation is highly dependent on the following
underlying key drivers of growth in profitability:

*  Sales Volume. Majority of the sales volume is generated from the domestic market
of the CGU. The growth in projected sales volume is mostty contributed by growth
in both retail and commercial segments. Retail sales refer to sales of petroleum
products through petrol stations. The forecasted sales volume growth s estimated to
come from: (i) rebranding of existing petrol stations; (ii) new petrol stations
approximately 30 to 40 stafions per year; and (iii) implementation of customer
loyalty program. The forecasted growth in the commercial sales is mostly attributed
to the expansion of corporate customers portfolio and new commercial customers.

o Selling Price and Improvement in the Gross Profit Margin. Management has
projected an improvement in selling. price in 2014, and thereafter, it is projected to
remain constant during the forecast period. Management also expects improvement
in gross profit margin to be achieved through better crude oil purchasing policy.

Based on the VIU, goodwill is not impaired as of December 31, 2013.
For purposes of growth rate sensitivity, a growth rate scenario of 2%, 3% and 4% is
applied on the discounted cash flows analysis. Based on the sensitivity analysis, any

reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount
of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.
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15. Other Assets

This account consists of:

2012
{As restated -
Note 2013 Note 3)
Current:
Input VAT : . P10,555 P7,134
Prepaid expenses 1,835 3,280
Special-purpose fund : 47 44
Tax recoverable 471 278
Others 25 14
Pi2,933 P10,750
Noncurrent:
Due from related parties 28, 34, 35 rio,877 P10,788
Retirement benefits asset 30 3,169 39
Catalyst 227 45
Prepaid rent 5,039 5,175
Long-term receivables - net 34, 35 45 72
Noncurrent deposits 34, 35 92 87
Others - net 1,398 1,985

120,847 P18,643

The “Noncurrent assets - others™ account includes software, marketing assistance to -
dealers, other prepayments and franchise fees amounting to P1,100 and P1,357 in 2013
and 2012, respectively, net of amortization of software, marketing assistance to dealets -
and franchise fees amounting to P294 and P48 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
amertization of prepaid rent amounted to P258 and P184 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Amortization of software, marketing assistance to dealers, franchise fees, prepaid rent
and other prepayments is included as part of “Selling and -administrative - depreciation
and amortization” account in the consolidated statements of income (Notes 23 and 25).

Included in due from related parties is an advance made by the Parent Company to
PCERP (Notes 28 and 30).

16. Short-term Loans

This account pertains to unsecured Philippine peso, US dollar and Malaysian ringgit
loans obtained from various banks with maturities ranging from 3 to 180 days and annual
interest ranging from 1.16% to 5.90% in 2013 and 1.38% to 6.00% in 2012 (Note 26).
These loans are intended to fund the importation of crude oil and petroleum products
{Note 10) and working capital requirements.
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17. Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of’

Note 2013 2012
Trade . 34, 35 P23,958 P9,788
Accrued rent 34,35 829 768
Related parties - 28,34, 35 1,046 657
Specific taxes and other taxes payable 959 667
Sales container and fob deposits 34, 35 317 651
Accrued interest 34, 35 570 447
Dividends payable 34,35 461 455
Insurance liabilities 34 35 178 315
Retirement benefits liability 30 66 of
Accrued payroll 34, 35 55 58
Others 34, 35 8§52 970

P29,291 P14,867

Accounts payable are liabilities to haulers, contractors and suppliers that are noninterest-
bearing and are generally settled on a 30-day term.

Others include provisions, retention payable, accruals of selling and administrative
expenses, and deferred liability on customer loyalty programme which are normally
settled within a year.

18. Long-term Debt

This account consists of:

Note 2013 2012
Unsecured Peso denominated
{net of debt issue cost)
Fixed rate corporate notes of 7% in 2016 to
2017 ’ (b) P19,859 P19,830
Fixed rate corporate notes of 8.14%o and _
9.33% ' . (er) 9,782 9,810
Fixed rate corporate notes of 6.3212% and :
7.1827% - (ef) 3,498 3,530
Unsecured Foreign currency denominated
(net of debt issue cost)
Floating rate dolfar loan (c) 1,979 11,922
Floating rate dollar loan (e 21,069 10,921
34,35 66,187 56,013
Less current portion 8,155 73
P58,032 P55.940
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a.  On June 5, 2009, the Parent Company issued P5,200 and P4,800 or a total of P10,000
Fixed Rate Corporate Notes. The P5,200 five-year Notes bear a fixed rate of 8.14%
per annum with a one-time payment of principal in June 2014. On the other hand,
the P4,800 seven-year Notes bear a fixed rate of 9.33% per annum with 6 principal
payments of P48 per year commencing June 2010 and a one-time paymeni of P4,5]2
in June 2016.

b. On November 10, 2010, the Parent Company issued P20,000 Peso-denominated
Notes, payable in US dollar. The notes bear interest of 7% per annum, payable
semi-gnnually in arrears on May 10 and November 10 of each vear. The notes will
mature on November 10, 2017. The principal and interest will be translated into and
paid in US dollar based on the average representative market rate at the applicable
rate calculation date at the time of each payment.

¢.  On September 30, 20t 1, the Parent Company signed and executed a US$480 miilion
term loan facility. The facility is amortized over 5 years with a 2-year grace period
and is subject to a floating interest rate plus a fixed spread. The loan proceeds were
used to finance the capital expenditure requirements of Refinery Master Plan Phase 2
(RMP-2). The first drawdown of US$80 million was made on November 25, 2011
while the balance of US$400 million was drawn on February 15, 2012. A partial
payment of US$180 million was made on June 29, 2012 and another partial payment
of US$26 million on October 30, 2013,

d. The Parent Company issued Fixed Rate Corporate Notes (FXCN) totaling P3,600 on

_October 25, 2011. The FXCN consisted of Series A Notes amounting to P690

having a maturity of 7 years from issue date and Series B Notes amounting to P2,910

having a maturity of 10 years from issue date. The Notes are subject to fixed-interest

coupons of 6.3212% per annum for the Series A Notes and 7.1827% per annum for

the Series B Notes. The net proceeds from the issuance were used for general
corporate requirements,

“e. On October 31, 2012, the Parent Company signed a five-year term loan facility
amounting to US$485 million with a syndicate of nine banks. The proceeds were
used to finance the capital expenditure requirements of RMP-2. Amortization in
seven equal amounts will start in November 2014, with final amortization due in
November 2017. An initial drawdown of US$100 million was made on November 9,
2012. Subsequent drawdowns of US$35 million and US$140 million were made in
December 2012. The remaining balance of US$210 million was drawn in the first
quarter of 2013,

The above mentioned loan agreements contain, among others, covenants relating to
merger and consolidation, maintenance of certain financial ratios, working capital
requirements and restrictions on guarantees.

As of December 31,2013 and 2012, the Parent Company complied with the covenants of
its debt agreements.

Total interest incurred on the above-mentioned long-term loans (including amortization
of debt issue costs) amounted to P458, P3,024 and P3,407 for the vears ended 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively (Note 26). Capitalized interest in 2013 and 2012 amounted to
P3,529 and P886, respectively (Nofe 12).
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Movements in debt issue costs follow:

2013 2012
Beginning balance P1,010 P602
Additions 293 899
Amortization for the year {445) £491)
Ending balance P858 F1,010

Repayment Schedule
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the annual maturities of long-term debt are as

follows:
2013
Year Gross Amount Debt Issue Costs Net
2014 P8,360 P205 8,155
2015 ’ 12,324 327 11,997
20106 16,788 131 16,657
2017 26,188 180 26,008
2018 678 4 674
2019 and beyond 2,707 11 2,696
P67,045 P858 P66,187
2012
Year Gross Amount Debt Issue Costs Net
2013 P84 Pl P73
2014 7,952 494 7,458
2015 ) 8,939 196 8,743
2016 13,403 100 13,303
2017 23,261 194 23,067
2018 and beyond 3,384 15 3,369
P57,023 P1,010 P36,013
19. Asset Retirement Obligation
Movements in the ARO are as follows;
Note 2013 2012
Beginning balance P997 P1,061
Additions 2 5
Effect of change in discount rate (46) (66)
Effect of change in leage term 14 (3)
Accretion for the year 26 G6 83
Gain on settlement 26 2% (83)
Ending balance P1,004 Po97
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20. Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Note 2013 2012
Payabte to a contractor P3,913 P1,787
Cash bonds 363 360
Cylinder deposits 210 213
Related party 28 - 28
Others 53 47
34,35 P4,539 P2.435
21 Equity
a. On February 27, 2009, the BOD approved an increase of the Parent Company’s

authorized capital stock from the current P10,000 to P25,000 (25,000,000,000 shares)
through the issuance of preferred shares aimed at raising funds for capital
expenditures related to expansion programs as well as to possibly reduce some of the
Parent Company’s debt. Both items, including a waiver to subscribe to the preferred
shares to be issued as a result of the increase in authorized capital stock, were
approved by the stockholders on May 12, 2009 at the annual stockholders® meeting.

On October 21, 2009, the BOD approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s -
articles of incorporation relating to the reclassification of a total of 624,895,503

unissued common shares to preferred shares with a par value of P1.00 per share, and

the denial of stockholders’ pre-emptive rights. By written assent, majority of the
stockholders voted for the amendment of the reclassification of unissued common

shares to preferred shares and the denial of pre-emptive rights.

On the same date, the BOD likewise approved the issuance and offering to the
general public of up to a total of 100,000,000 preferred shares at an issue price of up
to P100 per share. Other features of said preferred shares were approved by the
Executive Comumittee on Novemnber 25, 2009,

On January 21, 2010, the SEC approved Petron’s amendment to its arficles of
incorporation to include preferred shares in the composition of its authorized capital
stock. On February 12, 2010, the SEC issued an order permitting the offering and
sale of 106,000,000 preferred shares to be offered to the public from February 15 to
February 26, 2010. Subsequently, the PSE also approved the listing of the
100,000,000 preferred shares on March 5, 2010.

Capital Stock

Common Share

Pursuant to the registration statement rendered effective by the SEC on
May 18, 1995 and permit to sell issued by the SEC dated May 30, 1995,
10,000,000,000 common shares of Petron were registered and may be offered for sale
at an offer price of P1.00 per common share. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
Petron had 150,636 and 157,465 stockholders with at feast one board lot at the PSE,
respectively, and a total of 9,375,104,497 (P1 par value} issued and outstanding
common shares.
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C.

Preferred Share
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, Petron has 100,000,000 (P1 par value) issued
and outstanding preferred shares.

The preferred shares were-issued upon listing on the PSE at (P1 par value) P00 per
share. The proceeds from issuance in excess of par value less related transaction
costs amounted to P9,764 which were recognized as additional paid-in capital.

The preferred shares are peso-denominated, cumulative, non-participating, non-
voting and are redeemable at the option of the Parent Company. Dividend rate of
9.5281% per annum computed in reference to the issue price is payable every
March 5, June 5, September 5 and December 5 of each year, when declared by the
BOD.

All shares rank equally with regard to the Parent Company’s residual assets, except
that holders of preferred shares participate only to the extent of the issue price of the
shares plus any accumulated and unpaid cash dividends.

The total number of preferred shareholders with at least one board lot at the PSE as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is 116 and 123, respectively.

Retained Earnings
i. Declaration of Cash Dividends

On March 18§, 2013, the BOD approved cash dividends of P2.382 pér share for
preferred shareholders for the second and third quarter of 2013 with payment
dates on June 5, 2013 and September 5, 2013, respectively.

On the same date, the BOD approved cash dividends of P0.05 per share for
common shareholders as of April 2, 2013 which were paid on May 8, 2013.

On August 6, 2013, the BOD approved cash dividends of P2.382 per share for
preferred shareholders with payment dates on December 5, 2013 and
March 5, 2014,

On March 7, 2012, the BOD approved cash dividends of P2.382 per share to
preferred shareholders for the second and third quarters of 2012 with payment
dates on June 5, 2012 and September 5, 2012, respectively. On the same date, a
cash dividend of P0.10 per share was approved by the BOD for common
shareholders as of record date April 2, 2012 which was paid on April 24,2012,

On August 9, 2012, the BOD approved cash dividends of P2.382 per share to
preferred shareholders for the fourth quarter of 2012 and the first quarter of 2013
with payment dates on December 5, 2012 and March 5, 2013, respectively.

On February 2, 2011, the BOD declared a cash dividend of P2.382 per share
which was paid to preferred stockholders on March 7, 2011. Another cash
dividend of P2.382 per share was paid on June 6, 2011 to preferred stockholders
as of May 26, 2011. Also, on July 12, 2011, the BOD approved a cash dividend
of P2.382 per share which was paid to preferred stockholders on September 5,
2011. Finally, stockholders holding preferred shares as of November 16, 2011
were also paid a cash dividend of P2.382 per share on December 5, 2011 and
another P2.382 per share which was paid on March 5, 2012,
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For common shares, the BOD approved a cash dividend of P0.10 per share to
stockholders as of May 26, 2011, which was paid on June 6, 2011,

il. Appropriation for Capital Projects

On May [I, 2011, the BOD approved the additional appropriation of retained
earnings of P9,628 which took effect on May 31, 2011,

On July 12, 2011,.the BOD passed a resolution to approve the capital
expenditure for additional two boilers for the RMP-2. At the same meeting, the
BOD likewise approved the capital expense for the acquisition of a Gulfstream
aircraft. This aircraft was capitalized and included in the property, plant and
equipment in 2011 (Note 12). In November 2012, the Parent Company assigned
all its interest in the aircraft to, and in exchange for shares in, Peiron Finance
(Labuan) Limited.

The appropriated retained earnings as of December 31, 2012 amounting to
P25,171 were for the Parent Company’s RMP-2 project and expansion projects
of subsidiaries which are expected to be completed-in 2014 to 2015.

The Group’s unappropriated retained edrnings include its accumulated equity in net
earings of subsidiaries, joint venture and associates amounting to P4,960, P2,866
and P2,482 in 2013, 2012 and 201 1, respectively. Such amounts are not available for
declaration as dividends until declared by the respective investees.

Other reserves pertain to unrealized fair value gains (losses) on AFS financial assets,
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations and others.

Reserve for retirement plan pertains to the cumulative remeasurements of the
Group’s defined benefit retirement plan.

Undated Subordinated Capital Secﬁ::itics (USCS)

On February 6, 2013, the Parent Company issued US$500 mitlion USCS at an issue
price of 100% (“Original Securities™). 1n March 2013, Petron reopened the issuance
of the securities under the same terms and conditions of the Original Securities. An
additional US$250 million was issued at a price of 104.25% on March 11, 2013
(*“New Securities™). The New Securities constitute a further issuance of, are fungible
with, and are consolidated and form a single series with the Original Securities
(the “Original Securities” and, together with the “New Securities”, the “Securities™).

Holders of the Securities are conferred a right to receive distribution on a semi-
annual basis, subject to the declaration of the BOD, from their issue date at the rate
of 7.5% per annum, subject to a step-up rate. The Parent Company has a right to
defer this distribution under certain conditions.

The Securities have no fixed redemption date and are redeemable in whole, but not in
part, at the Parent Company’s option on or after August 6, 2018 or on any
distribution payment date thereafter or upon the occurrence of certain other events at
their principal amounts together with any accrued, unpaid or deferred distributions.
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The proceeds were applied by the Parent Company towards capital and other
expenditures in respect of RMP-2 and used for general corporate purposes,

The first payment of distribution in respect of the Securities amounting fo
US$28.125 million (P,674) was made on August 6, 2013.

22, Cost of Goods Sold

This account consists of:

Note . 2013 2012 2011
Inventories . 10 P432,779 P398,102 P244 937
Depreciation and amortization 25 2,628 2,471 2,207
Personnel expenses 24 . 1,269 1,006 684
Others 31 3,803 5,219 3,782

P440,479 P406,798 P251,610

Distribution or transshipment costs included as part of inventories amounted to P8,049,
P8,155 and P4,439 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

23. Selling and Administrative Expenses
This account consists of?

2012 2011

{As restated - (As restated -
Note 2013 Note 3) Note 3)
Personnel expenses 24 P2,815 P2,246 P1,863
Purchased services and utilities 2,478 2,113 1,464 -
Depreciation and amortization /5, 25 3,178 2,642 1,450
Maintenance and repairs 1,119 1,238 700
Rent - net 29, 31 (6) (148) 122
Impairment losses on trade
and other receivables 4,9 3 13 75
Materials and office supplies 269 425 562
Advertising 922 1,052 545
Taxes and licenses 304 262 181
Others 10 393 294 267
Pi1,475 P10,137 pP7,229 .

Selling and administrative expenses include research and development costs amounting
to P60, P50 and P42 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Rent is shown net of rental
income amounting to P1,155, P977 and P431 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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24. Personnel Expenses

This account consists of’

2012 201}
Note 2013 (Asrestated)  {As restated)
Salaries, wages and other .
employee costs 28 P3,585 P2,954 P2,705
Retirement costs (income) -
defined benefit plan 28, 30 323 161 (214)
Retirement costs - defined -
contribution plan 28 176 137 56
P4,084 P3,252 P2,547
The above amounts are distributed as {ollows:
2012 2011
Note 2013 (Asrestated) (As restated)
Costs of goods sold 22 P1,269 P1,006 P684
Selling and administrative
expenses 23 2,815 2,246 1,863
P4,084 P3,252 P2,547
25. Depreciation and Amortization
This account consists of:
Note 2013 2012 2011
Cost of goods sold:
Property, plant and
equipment 12, 22 P2,628 P2.471 P2.207
Seliing and administrative
expenses:
Property, plant and equipment /2 2,625 2,219 1,357
Investment property 13 1 9] 91
Intangible assets and others 15 552 332 2
23 3,178 2,642 1,450
P5,806 P5,113 P3,657

- 65 -



26. Interest Expense and Other Financing Charges, Interest income and Other Income
(Expenses) T

This account consists of:

Note 2013 2012 2011
Interest expense and other
financing charges:
Long-term debt 18 P46 P2,533 P3,233
Shott-term loans 16 3,351 3,044 1,185
Bank charges 1,579 1,351 454
Amortization of debt issue
costs /8 52 491 174
Accretion on ARQO 79 66 83 7l
Others 8 6 7
P3,462 P7,508 P5,124
Interest income:
Advances to relaled parties 15, 28 P777 P580 P27
Short-term placements 6 373 345 330
AFS financial assets 8 17 20 35
Trade receivables 88 101 76
Cash in banks 6 14 58 6
Others ) 16 17 6
P1,285 P1,121 P1,380
Other income {experses):
Foreign currency gains
(losses) - net 34 (P4,109) P1,270 (P88)
Marked-to-market gains
(losses) 35 2,514 {845) 205
Insurance claims . 115 119 177
Changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVPL 7 29 (22) 1
Gain on settlement of ARO 19 29 83 27 -
Hedging gains - net 495 49 193
Others - net 310 123 6
(P675) P77 P521

The Parent Company recognized its share in the net income of PDSI amounting P0.46,
P0.67 and P0.53 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and recorded it as part of “Other
income {expenses) - Others” account.
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27. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are from the following:

2012
{As restated -
2013 Note 3)
Various allowance, accruals and others P795 P552
Rental 218 196
ARO 242 210
Net retirement benefits (asset) liability (837} 5
MCIT 10 301
NOLCO 19 504
Unutilized tax losses 124 93
Fair market value adjustments on business
combination (47) (46)
Excess of double-declining over straight-line method
of depreciation and amortization (3,101) {3.207)
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes on property,
plant and equipment deducted in advance and others (2,037 {1,097
Inventory differential : (438) (326)
Capitalized taxes and duties on inventories deducted
in advance (204) (104)
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net 816 (141)
Unrealized fair value gains on AFS financial agsets {3) (5)
(P4,443)  (P3,065)

As of December 31, 2013, the NOLCO and MCIT of the Group that can be claimed as
deduction from future taxable incorme and deduction from corporation income tax due,
respectively, are as follows:

Year . '
Incurred/Paid  Carryforward Benefits Up To NOLCO MCIT
2011 December 31, 2014 P63 P -
2012 December 31, 2015 ! 4
2013 December 31, 2016 - 6

P64 P10

The above amounts are reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as

follows:
2012
(As restated -
2013 Note 3)
Deferred tax assets P162 P78
Deferred tax labilities ] (4,605) {3,143)
(P4,443) (P3,065)

Net deferred taxes of individual companies are not allowed to be offset against net
deferred tax liabilities of other companies, or vice versa, for purposes of consolidation.
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The components of income tax expense are shown below:

2012 2011

(As restated - (As restated -
2013 Note 3) Note 3)

Current P1,356 P346 P2,784
Deferred 494 (87) 43
P1,850 P459 P2,827

The following are the amounts of deferred tax expense (benefit), for each type of
temporary difference, recognized in the consolidated statements of income:

2012
2013  (As restated)
Various aflowance, accruals and others (P243) P288
Rental (22) (I8)
ARO (32) (18)
MCIT 291 (299)
NOLCO 485 (504)
Unutilized tax losses 31 (93)
Excess of double-declining over straight-line method
of depreciation and amortization ‘ {106) 123
Capitalized interest, duties and taxes on preperty,
plant and equipment deducted in advance and others 940 267
Inventory differential 112, 212
Capitalized taxes and duties on inventories deducted _
in advance 100 (122)
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net (957) (n
Others (43) 154
’ P494 (P87)
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A reconciliation of tax on the pretax income computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense reported in the consolidated statements of income is as follows:

2012 2011
(As restated - {As restated -
Note 2013 Note 3) Note 3)
Statutory income tax rate 30.00% 30.00% 30.00%
Increase (decrease} in income
tax rate resulting from:
Income subject to Income
Tax Holiday (ITH) 36 (2.97%) (3.67%) (4.50%)
Interest income subjected to
lower final tax . (1.35%) (4.02%) {0.94%)
Nontaxable income {0.81%) (8.81%) (0.67%)
Nondeductible expense 3.13% 6.66% 0.03%
Nondeductible interest
expense 0.49% 1.61% 0.37%
Changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVPL 26 0.12% 0.31% -

Excess of optional standard
deduction over deduclible

expenses (0.03%) {0.36%) (0.05%)
Others, mainly income '

. subject to different tax )
rates . . (1.93%) {1.22%) (0.19%)
Effective income tax rate . 26.65% 20.50% 24.05%

Optional Standard Deduction

Effective July 2008, Republic Act (RA) No. 9504 was approved giving corporate
taxpayers an. option to claim itemized deduction or optional standard deduction (OSD)
equivalent to 40% of gross sales. Once the option to use OSD is made, it shall be
irrevocable for the taxable year for which the option was made. Petrogen and LLCDC
opted to apply OSD in 2013 and 201 2.
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28. Related Party Disclosures

The Parent Company, certain subsidiaries, associates, joint venture and SMC and its
subsidiaries in the normal course of business, purchase products and services from one
another. Transactions with related parties are made at normal market prices and terms.
An assessment is undertaken at each financial year by examining the financial position of
the related party and the market in which the reiated party operates. The balances and
transactions with related parties as of and for the years ended December 31 follow:

Revenue  Purchases Amounis  Ameunts

from from Qwedby Owedlo
Retated Related Related Related
Note  Year Parligs Parties Parties Parties Terms Conditions
Retirement 9, /3, 30 a 2043 r177 r - P16,393 r - On demandg/ Unsecured;
plan 2012 557 - 15,517 - long-term; Na
2011 420 - 24,728 - Interest bearing  nupairment
Intermediate e 2013 4 157 5 94 On demand, Unsecured;
Parent 2012 5 87 7 20 Mon-interesi No
2011 i 76 i 20  bearing Impairment
Undercommon A, ¢, d 2013 16,053 3,444 3,180 924 On demand; Unsecured:
control 2012 13.68¢ 2,106 1,971 612 MNon-interest No
2011 4,849 2467 634 632 bearing impaitment
Associales h 2013 86 - 21 - Om demand; Unsecured:
212 78 - 17 28 MNon-interest No
bearing impairment
Joint venture ¢ 2013 . - 137 . 8 28 On demand; Unsecured;
22 - 45 I8 25 MNon-interest No
' bearing impairment

2013 P16,920 P3,748  P19,607  P1,046

2012 14,320 P2,238  P17,530 Po8S

2011 15,261 P2,543  P25473 P652

a. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company has interest bearing
advances to PCERP, included as part of “Other receivables™ and “Other noncurrent
assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position, for some
investment opportunities (Notes 9, 15 and 30).

b. Sales relate to the Parent Company’s supply agreements with associates and various
SMC subsidiaries. Under these agreements, the Parent Company supplies the
bunker, diesel fuel, gasoline and lube requirements of selected SMC plants and
subsidiaries.

¢. Purchases relate to purchase of goods and services such as construction, information
technology and shipping from a joint venture and various SMC subsidiaries.

d. Petron entered into a lease agreement with San Miguel Properties, Inc. (SMPI) for its
office space covering 6,802 square meters with a monthly rate of P6.4. The lease,
which commenced on June 1, 2013, is for a period of one year and may be renewed
in accordance with the wrilten agreement of the parties.

e. The Parent Company also pays SMC for its share in common expenses such as
utilities and management fees.

{. Amounts owed by related parties consist of trade, non-trade receivables, advances
and security deposits.
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g. Amounts owed to related parties consist of trade payables, non-trade payables and
other noncurrent liabilities.

h. The compensation and benefits of key management personnel of the Group, by
benefit type, included as part of “Personnel expenses” account follow:

2012 2011
2013 (As restated) {As restated)

Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits P536 P568 P459
Retirement benefils - defined
contribution plan 23 i8 12
Retirement benefits - defined benefit
plan 66 23 {53)
P625 P609 P418

29, Operating Lease Commitments

Group as Lessee

The Group entered into commercial leases on certain parcels of land for its refinery and
service stations (Notes 23 and 31). The lease’s life ranges from one to twenty six years
with renewal options included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the
Group by entering into these leases. The lease agreements include upward escalation
adjustments of the annual rental rates.

Future minimum rental payables under the non-cancellable operating lease agreements as
of December 31 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011

Within one year - r1,110 Po13 P657
Afier one year but not more than five years 3,490 2,998 2,423
After five years 8,554 6,861 6,730
P13,154 P10,772 P9 810

Group as Lessor

The Group has entered into lease agreements on its service stations and other related
structures {(Note 23). The non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between two to
nine years. All leases include a clause to enable upward escalation adjustment of the
annual rental rates.

Future minimum rental receivables under the non-cancellable operating lease agreements
as of December 31 follow:

2013 2012 2011 .
Within one year P284 P298 i p279
Afier one year but not more than five years 384 344 262
After five years : 43 69 45

P71l P71 P586
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30. Retirement Plan

The succeeding tables summarize the components of net retirement benefits cost
(income) under a defined benefit retirement plan recognized in profit or loss and the
funding status and amounts of retirement plan recognized in the consolidated statemnents
of financial position. Contributions and costs are determined in accordance with the
actuarial studies made for the plans. Annual cost is determined using the projected unit
credit method. The Group’s latest actuarial valuation date is December 31, 20I13.
Valuations are obtained on a periodic basis. :

The Parent Company’s Retirement Plan is registered with the Bureau of Internal Revenue
(BIR) as a tax-qualified plan under Republic Act (RA) No. 4917, as amended. The .
control and administration of the retirement plan is vested in the Board of Trustees
(BOT), as appointed by the BOD of the Parent Company. The BOT of the retirement
plan, who exercise voting rights over the shares and approve material transactions, are
also officers of the Parent Company, while one of the BOT is aiso a BOD. The retirement
plan’s accounting and administrative functions are undertaken by SMC’s Retirement
Funds Office.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the net defined benefit retirement asset
(liability) and its components:
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The above net defined benefit retirement asset (liability) was recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position as foliows:

2012

(As restated -
Naote 2013 Note 3)

Other noncurrent assets - net I5 P3,169 P39i
Trade and other payables - 17 (66) on
Retirement benefits liability (noncurrent portion) (820) (983
' P2,283 (P6383)

Retirement costs {incoime) recognized in the consolidated statements of income by the
Parent Company amounted to P205, P86 and (P215) in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Retirement costs recognized in the consolidated statements of income by the subsidiaties
amounted to P11§, P75 and Pl in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Parent Company’s retirement fund approximate fair values
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,

The Parent Company does not expect to pay anything to its defined benefit plans in 2014 .
since the plan asset exceeds the benefit obligation. '

Plan assets consist of the following:

2013 2012

Shares of stock
Quoted 30% T7%
Unqguoted . 6% T%
Government securities ) 4% 6%
Cash - 5% 6%
Others 5% 4%
100% 100%

Investment in Shares of Stock

As of December 31, 2013, the Parent Company’s plan assets include 1,492.431,097
common shares of Petron with fair market value per share of P13.96.

As of December 31, 2013, the Parent Company’s plan assets include 2,000,000
Series “2”, Subseries “A”™ and 2,000,000 Series “2”, Subseries “B” preferred shares of
Petron with fair market value per share of P76.15 and P76.30, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, the Parent Company’s plan assets include investment in
Petron bonds amounting.to P127.

The plan recognized a gain (loss) on the investment in marketable securities and bonds of
the Parent Company and SMC amounting to P5,228 and (P4,527) in 2013 and 2012,

respectively.

Dividend income from the investment in shares of stock of Petron and SMC amounted to
P99 and P164 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Investment in shares of stock also includes investment in the common shares of PAHL.

On June 23, 2010, the Plan acquired 102,142,858 unissued and unsubscribed ordinary
Class B shares for P422 (US$9 million) or 18.33% of the outstanding shares of PAHL.,

On March 31, 2011, the Pian entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Silverdale
(Suisse), S.A. for the 273,000,000 ordinary Class A shares of PAHL for a consideration
of P1,497 (US$35 million) payable in six installments which resulted in an increase in
the Plan’s ownership equity in PAHL from 18.33% to 67.33%.

On December 31, 2012, PAHL issued additional shares to the other shareholder, which
diluted the Plan’s ownership equity in PAHL to 54%.

Investment in Trust Account

Investment in trust account represents funds entrusted to a financial institution for the
purpose of maximizing the yield on investible funds.

Others include cash and cash equivalents and receivables which earn interest.

The BOT reviews the leve! of funding required for the retirement fund. Such a review
includes the asset-liability matching (ALM) strategy and investment risk management
policy. The Parent Company’s ALM objective is to match maturities of the plan assets to
the retirement benefit obligation as they fall due. The Parent Company monitors how the
duration and expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows
arising from the retirement benefit obligation. The Parent Company is not expected to
contribute to its defined benefit retirement plan in 2014. .

The BOT approves the percentage of asset to be allocated for fixed income instruments
and equities. The retirement plan has set maximum exposure limits for each type of
permissible investments in marketable securities and deposit instruments. The BOT may,
from time to time, in the exercise of its reasonable discretion and taking into account .
existing investment opportunities, review and revise such allocation and limits.

The Retirement Plans expose the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest
rafe risk, longevity risk and salary risk as follows:

Investment and Interest Risk. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market yields to government
bonds. Generally, a decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bonds will
increase the plan obligation. However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the
return on the plan’s investments and if the return on plan asset falls below this rate, it will
create a deficit in the plan. Due to the long-term nature of plan obligation, a level of
continuing equity investments is an appropriate element of the Parent company’s long-
term strategy to manage the plans efficiently.

Longevity and Salary Risks. The present value of the defined obligation is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and
after their employment and to their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life
expectancy and salary of the plan participants will result in an increase in the plan
obligation.

The overall expected rate of return is determined based on historical performance of the
investments.
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The principal actuarial assumptions used to determine retirement benefits are as follows:

2013 20152 2011
Discount rate 5.00% t0 6.26% 5.00% - 6.30% 6.17% - 7.09%
Future salary increases 6.00% to 8.00% 6.00% - 8.00% 7.00% - 8.00%

Assumptions for mortality and disability rates are based on pubtished statistics and
mortality and disability tables.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is from 7.55 to 28.18 years
- and 9.70 to 20.00 years as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

As of December 31, 2013, the reasonably possible changes to one of the relevant
actuarial assumptions, while holding all other assumptions constant, would have affected

the defined benefit asset by the amounts below:

Defined Benefit Asset

1 Percent I Percent
Increase Decrease
Discount rate Pa67 (P541)
Salary increase rate (490} 433

The Parent Company has advances to PCERP amounting to P16,393 and P15,517 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, included as part of “Other receivables” and
“Other noncurrent assets” account in the consolidated statements of financial position
{Notes ¢ and 15). The advances are subject to interest of 5% and 4% in 2013 and 2012,
respectively (Note 28). ’

Transactions with the retirement plan are made at normal market prices and terms,
Cutstanding balances as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 are unsecured and settlements
are made in cash. There have been no guarantees provided for any retirement plan
receivables. The Parent Company has not made any provision for impairment losses
relating to the receivables from retirement plan for the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012, and 2011.

31. Significant Agreements

Supply Agreement

The Parent Company has assigned all its rights and obligations to PSTPL (as Assignee)
to have a term contract to purchase the Parent Company’s crude oil requirements from
Saudi Arabian American Qil Company {“Saudi Aramco”™), based on the latter’s standard
Far East selling prices. The contract is for a period of one year from October 28, 2008 to
October 27, 2009 with automatic one-year extensions thereafter unless terminated at the
option of either party, within 60 days written notice. Outstanding liabilities of the Parent
Company for such purchases are shown as part of “Liabilities for crude oil and petroleum
product importation™ account in the consolidated statements of financial position as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, The contract is extended until December 31, 2014,

Petron Malaysia has a service level agreement with Concord Energy Ltd. (Concord
Energy). Under this agreement, Concord Energy shall act as PMRMB’s commercial
trader in relation to all spot & term purchase of Crude Oil and all spot & term sale of
Low Sulfur Waxy Residue from Port Dickson Refinery.
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Supply Contract with National Power Corporation (NPC) and Power Sector Assets and
Liabilities Managemen! Corporation (PSALM). The Parent Company entered into
various supply contracts with NPC and PSALM. Under these contracts, Petron supplies
the bunker fuel, diesel fuel oil and engine lubricating oil requirements of selected NPC
and PSALM plants, and NPC-supplied Independent Power Producers (1PP) plants.

As of December 31, 2013, the lollowing are the fuel supply coniracts granted to the
Parent Company:

NPC
Date of Contract
Bid Date Award Buration Volume in KL Coutract Price
DFO* IFO* ELO* DFO* IrQ* ELO*
Calayan DP & others
Dec. 29, dan_ 11, (Jan, - Dec. 2012 with
2011 2012 6 months extension) 390 i7
Repeat Order for CY
2012 Contract
Dec. 29, July 4, {luly - Dee. 2012 with
2011 2032 4 months extension) 4 0.18
NPC Calapan
Modular and Jolo
Drec. 29, Feb. 29, (Jan_ - Dec. 2012 with
2011 2012 6 months extension) 78 3
NPC Addilional
Contract 2(:12
Nov. 13, Dec. S, {Nov. - Dec. 2012 with
2012 2012 6 months extension) 1,172 51
NPC Repeat Order
Nov. 13, Dec. 5, {Nov. - Dec. 2012 with
2012 2012 G months extension) &9 3
Mar 5, Mar 13,
2013 2013 NPC Mar - May. 2013 G712 34 29 |
) NPC Basco DP &
' Other NPC
May 22, May 28, {May - Dec. 2813 with
2013 2012 6 months extension) 13,556 4332 586 112
NPC Pulang Lupa BP,
Lot @ Romblomn and
Lot 27 Zamboanga
May 22, home 14, {May - Dec. 2013 with
2013 2013 6 months extcnsion) [3,511 613
s NPC ELO Patnanungan
DP & Others
Sune 1€, August i, (Aug - Dec 2013 with
2013 2013 6 months extension) 154 15
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PSALM

Date of Contract
Bid Date Award Duration Volume in KE Contract Price
DFO* 1IFO* ELO* DFQ* IFO* ELO*
Power Barge 10]
Feb. 21, Mar. 9, (March - December 2012
2012 2012 with & months extension) 4,663 165
Power Barpe 102
Feb. 21, Mar. 9, {March - December 2012
2612 2012 with & tnonths exiension) 1,865 56
Pawer Batge 103
Feb. 21, Mar. 9, {March - December 2012 .
2012 2012 with & months extension) 3725 122
Power Barge 104 :
Feb. 21, Mar. 9, (March - December 2012
2042 2012 with & months extension} 8,370 262
Power Barge 101 Engine
Lubrigating Oil
Qet. 10, Qct. 24, (October - December 2012
2012 2012 with & months extension) 80 8
Power Barge 102
Engine Lubricating Oil
Qet. 190, Cct. 24, {October - December 2012
2012 2012 with 6 menths extension) A0 4
Mar. 7, Mar. 20, Power Barge 103
2083 2013 {March - December 2013) ! 3
Southen: Philippines
Mar. 7, Mar. 26, Power Corporation
2043 2043 (March - December 2013) 20 i 4
Western Mmdanao
Mar. 7, Mar. 26, Power Corporation
2043 2013 (March - December 2013) 42 2
Power Bage 101
May 7, May 23, {June - December 2013
2013 2013 with 6 moaths extension) 310 12
Power Barge 102 -
May 7, May 23, {June - December 2013 .
2013 2013 with 6 months extension) 51 2
Naga Plant
Complex Carporation
May 7, May 23, {June - Decemsher 2013
2013 2013 will 6 months extension) 350 19

* O - Indusivial Fuel ©il
DRI - Diesel Fuel it
ELO - Engme Lubricating Off
KL - Kilo Liters

In the bidding for the Supply & Delivery of Qil-Based Fuel to NPC, PSALM, 1PPs and
Small Power Utilities Group (SPUG) Plants/Barges for the year 2013, Petron was
awarded to supply a total of 30,366 kilo-liters (KL) worth P1,344 (2012-84,159 KL
worth P3,640) of diesel fuel; 22,989 KL worth P718 (2012-143,225 KL worth P4,926) of
bunker fuel and 274 KL worth P27 (2012-1,267 KL worth P126) of engine lubricating
oil.

Toll Service Agreement with Innospec Limited (“Innospec”). PFC entered into an
agreement with Innospec, a leading global fuel additives supplier, in December 2006,
Under the agreement PFC shall be the exclusive toll blender of Innospec’s fuel additives
sold in the Asia-Pacific region consisting of the following territories: South Korea,
China, Taiwan, Singapore, Cambodia, Japan and Malaysia.

PFC will provide the (olling services which include storage, blending, filing and logistics
management. In consideration of these services, Innospec will pay PFC a service fee
based on the total volume of products blended at PFC Fuel Additives Blending facility.

Tolling services started in 2008 on which PFC recognized revenue amounting to P37,
P33 and P35 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Hungry Juan Qutlet Development Agreement with San Miguel Foods, Inc. PFC entered
into an agreement with SMF] for a period of three years and paid a one-time franchise
fee, The store, which started operating in November 2012, is located at Rizal Blvd. cor,
Argonaut Highway, Subic Bay Freeport Zone,

Lease Agreement with Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC). On September 30,
2009, NVRC entered into a 30-year lease with PNOC without rent-free period, covering
a property which it shall use as site for its refinery, commencing January 1, 2010 and
ending on December 31, 2039, Based on the latest re-appraisal made, the annual rental
shall be P138, starting 2012, payable on the 15th day of January each year without the
necessity of demand, This non-cancelable lease is subject to renewal options and annual
escalation clauses of 3% per annum to be applied starting 2013 until the next re-appraisal
is conducted. The leased premises shall be reappraised in 2017 and every fifth year
thereafter in which the new rental rate shall be determined equivalent to 5% of the
reappraised value, and stili subject to annual escalation clause of 3% for the four years
following the re-appraisal. Prior to this agreement, Petron had an outstanding lease
agreement on the same property from PNOC. Also, as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
Petron leases other parcels of land from PNOC for its bulk plants and service stations.

32. Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are computed as follows:

2012 2011
~ (Asrestated - (As restated -
2013 Note 3) Note 3}
Net income attributable to equity
holders of the Parent Company P5,247 P1,701 P8914
Dividends on preferred shares for the
period " 953 953 1,191
Distributions to the holders of USCS 1,674 - -
Net income attributable to common
shareholders of the Parent
Company (a) P2,620 P748 P7,723
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding
{in millions) (b) 9,375 9,375 9,375
Basic/Diluted earnings per common
share attributable {o equity holders
of the Parent Company (a/b) P.28 P3.08 P0.82

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Parent Company has no potential dilutive
debt or equity instruments.
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33. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

2013 2012 2011
Decrease {increase) in assets:
Trade receivables (P3,971) {P3,484) (P3,714)
Inventories (1,319 1,341 (9.618)
Other cwrrent assets (1,247) (2,409) (3,925)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product impottation 9,747 (3,909} 2,646
Trade and other payables and others 19,070 4,310 851
. 21,780 (4,211) {13,760)
Additional allowance for impairment
of receivables, inventory decline )
and/or obsolescence and others 630 383 121
P22,410 (P3,828) (P13,639)

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments.include cash and cash equivalents, debt and
equity securities, bank loans and derivative instruments. The main purpose of bank loans
is to finance working capital relating to importation of crude and petroleum products, as
well as to partly fund capital expenditures. The Group has other financial assets and
tabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, which are
generated directly from its operations.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative fransactions for speculative purposes.
The Group uses hedging instruments to prolect its margin on its products from potential
price volatility of crude oil and products. [t also enters into short-term forward currency
contracts to hedge its currency exposure on crude oil importations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The BOD regularly
reviews and approves the policies for managing these financial risks. Details of each of
these risks are discussed below, together with the related risk management structure.

Risk Management Structure
The Group follows an enterprise-wide risk management framework for identifying,
assessing and addressing the risk factors that affect or may affect its businesses.

The Group’s risk management process is a bottom-up approach, with each risk owner
mandated to conduct regular assessment of its risk profile and formulate action plans for
managing identified risks. -As the Group's operation is an integrated value chain, risks
emanate from every process, while some could cut across groups. The results of these
activities flow up to the Management Commitiee and, eventually, the BOD through the
Group’s annual business planning process.
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Oversight and technical assistance is likewise provided by corporate units and
committees with special duties. These groups and their functions are:

a. The Risk and Insurance Management Group, which is mandated with the overall
coordination and development of the enterprise-wide risk management process.

b. The Financial Risk Management Unit of the Treasurer’s Department, which is in
charge of foreign currency hedging transactions.

¢. The Transaction Management Unit of Controllers Department, which provides .
backroom support for all hedging transactions.

d. The Corporate Technical & Engineering Services Group, which oversees strict
adherence to safety and environmental mandates across all facilities,

e. The Internal Audit Department, which has been tasked with the implementation of a
risk-based auditing.

f. PSTPL executes the hedging transactions involving crude and product imports on
behalf of the Group.

The BOD also created separate board-level entities with explicit authority and
responsibility in managing and monitoring risks, as follows:

a. The Audit Committee, which ensures the integrity of internal control activities
throughout the Group. It develops, oversees, checks and pre-approves financial
management functions and systems in the areas of credit, market, liquidity,
operational, legal and other risks of the Group, and crisis management. The Internal
Audit Department and the External Auditor directly report to the Audit Committee
regarding the direction, scope and coordination of audit and any retated activities.

b. The Compliance Officer, wha is a senior officer of the Parent Company reports to the
BOD through the Audit Commitiee. He monitors compliance with the provisions
and requirements of the Corporate Governance Manual, determines any possibie
violations and recommends corresponding penalties, subject to review and approval
of the BOD. The Compliance Officer identifies and monitors compliance risk.
Lastly, the Compliance Officer represents the Group before the SEC regarding
matters involving compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Parent- Company’s functional currency is the Philippine peso, which is the
denomination of the bulk of the Group’s revenues. The Group’s exposures to foreign
currency risk arise mainly from US dollar-denominated sales as well as purchases
principally of crude oil and petroleurn products. As a result of this, the Group maintains
a level of US dollar-denominated assets and liabilities during the period. Foreign
currency risk occurs due to differences in the levels of US dollar-denominated assets and
liabilities.

In addition, starting March 31, 2012, the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risks also
arise from US dollar-denominated sales and purchases, principally of crude oil and
petroleum products, of Petron Malaysia whose transactions are in Malaysian ringgit,
which are subsequently converted into US dollar before ultimately translated to
equivalent Philippine peso amount using applicable rates for the purpose of
consolidation.
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The Group pursues a policy of mitigating foreign currency risk by entering into hedging
transactions or by substituting US dollar-denominated liabilities with peso-based debt.
The natural hedge provided by US doliar-denominated assets is also factored in hedging
decisions. As a matter of policy, currency hedging is timited to the extent of 100% of the
underlying exposure.

The Group is aliowed to_engage in active risk management strategies for a portion of its
foreign currency risk exposure. Loss limits are in place, monitored daily and regularly
reviewed by management.

Information on the Group’s US dollar-denominated financial assets and liabilities and
their Philippine peso equivalents are as follows:

2013 2012
: Phil. peso Phil. peso
US dollar Equivalent US dollar  Equivalent
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 439 19,479 226 9,277
Trade and other receivables 899 39,926 . 1,084 44,498
Other assets 61 2,691 58 2,381
1,399 62,096 1,368 56,156
Liabilities
Short-term loans 440 19,546 787 32,306
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroleum product importation 1,347 59,804 1,610 41,460
Long-term debts (including
current maturities) 759 33,708 575 23,604
Other liabilities 507 22,483 246 10,098
3,053 135,541 2,618 107,468
Net foreign currency -
denominated monetary
liabilities (1,654)  (73,445) (1,250) (51,312

The Group incurred net foreign currency gains (losses) amounting to (P4,109), P1,270 -
and (P88) in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively (Note 26), that were mainly countered by
certain marked-to-market gains (losses) and hedging gains (losses) (Note 26). The
foreign cumrency rates from Philippine peso (Php) to US dollar (US$) as of
December 31 are shown in the following table:

Php to US$
December 31, 2011 43.84
December 31, 2012 41.05
December 31, 2013 44.40

The management of foreign currency risk is also supplemented by monitoring the
sensitivity of financial instruments to various foreign currency exchange rate scenarios.
Foreign currency movements affect reported equity through the retained earnings arising
from increases or decreases in unrealized and realized foreign currency gains or losses.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the
US dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of profit before tax and
equity as of December 31,2013 and 2012:

P Decrease in the US

Pt Increase in the US

dollar Exchange Rate dollar Exchange Rate
Effect on Effect on
Income Before  Effecton  Income Before  Effect on
2013 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash equivalents (P219) (r370) P229 P370
Trade and other receivables (46) (885) 46 885
Other assets (44) (48) 44 48
(319) (1,303) 319 1,363
Short-term loans 30 431 (30) (431)
L.iabilities for crude ol and
petroleum product
importation 466 1,207 (466) (1,207)
Long-term debts {including
current maturities) 759 531 (759) (531)
Other liabilities 432 377 (432) G717
1,687 2,546 (1,687) (2,546)
ri,368- P1,243 (P1,368) (P1,243)

P1 Decrease in the US
dollar Exchange Rate

Pt Increase in the US
dollar Exchange Rate

Effect on Effect on
Income Before Effect on Income Before Effect on
2012 Income Tax Equity Income Tax Equity
Cash and cash eguivalents P94y  (P198) P94 198
Trade and other receivables (73) (1,062) 73 1,062
Other assets (36) (47) - 36 47
(203) (1,307) 203 1,307
Short-term loans _ 45 773 - (45) (773)
Liabilities for crude oil and
petroteum product
importation 455 874 (455) (874)
Long-term debts {including
currenl maturities) 575 403 (575) 403)
Other liabilities 121 209 (121} (209)
1,196 2,259 (1,196) (2.259)
P993 P9s2 (P993) (P952)

Exposures to foreign currency rates vary during the year depending on the volume of
foreign currency denominated transactions.  Nonetheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Group’s currency risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument (cash flow
interest rate risk) or its fair value (fair value interest rate risk) witl fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates
mainly to long-term borrowings and investment securities. Investments or borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. On the other hand,
investments or borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The Group manages its interest costs by using a combination of fixed and variable rate
debt instruments. Management is responsible for monitoring the prevailing market-based
interest rates and ensures that the marked-up rates levied on its borrowings are most
favorable and benchmarked against the interest rates charged by other creditor banks.

On the other hand, the Group’s investment policy is to maintain an adequate yield to
match or reduce the net interest cost from its borrowings prior o deployment of funds to
their intended use in operations-and working capital management. However, the Group
invests only in high-quality securities while maintaining the necessary diversification to
avoid concentration risk.

In managitg inlerest rate risk, the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term
volatility on earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent changes in interest rates
would have an impact on profit or loss.

The management of interest rate risk is also supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity
of the Group’s financial instruments to various standard and non-standard interest rate
scenarios. Interest rate movements affect reported equity through the retained earnings
arising from increases or decreases in interest income or interest expense as well as fair
value changes reported in profit or foss, if any.

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible 1% increase in the interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased the Group’s profit before tax {through the
impact on floating rate borrowings). and equity by P337 and P236 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively. A 1% decrease in the interest rate would have had the equal but opposite
effect.

Interest Rate Risk Table
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the terms and maturity profile of the interest-bearing
financial instruments, together with its gross amounts, are shown in the following tables:

2013 <1 Year __ 1-<2 Years 2-<3 Years 3-<4 Years __ 4-<5 Years >5 Years Total
Fixed Rate
Philippine peso
dennminated 5,284 P84 P4,548 20,036 Po78 P2,707 P33337
Interest rate 63% -9.3% 63%-93% 63%-93% 6.3%-7.2% 6.3%-T2% 1.21%
US$ denominated
(expressed in Php) 3,076 12,248 12,240 6,152 - - 33,708
Interest rate* 1,3, 6 mos. 1,3, 6mo. I, 3, Gmos. I, 3, 6 ntos,
Libor + Libor + Libor + Libar ¢
margin margin margin margin
8,360 P12,324 Pi6,788 | P26,188 P678 P2,707 P67,045

*The group reprices every 3 months buf has been given arr option (o reprice every | ar 6 months.
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2012 <} Year 1-<2 Years 2-<3 Years 3-<4 Years 4-<5 Years >3 Years Taotal

Fixed Rate
Philippe peso
denominated P33 75,284 P84 P4.548 260,036 P3.384 P33,419
Interest rate 63%-03% 63%-93% 63%-93% 63% -93% 63%-72% 63%-72%
1SS denomnated
(expressed in Php) - 2,668 8.855 8,855 3,226 - 23,604
Interest rale® 1,3 6mos 1.3, 6m0s 1, 3, 5mos. 1, 3, 6 mos.
Libor + fabor + Libor + Libor +
margsn margin margin TN
P83 1952 T8,93% P13,403 P23,262 P3384 P57,023

*Phe group reprices evers 3 months bus bas heen given con opiron te reprice every I or 6 months.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. In effectively managing
credit risk, the Group regulates and extends credit only to qualified and credit-worthy
customers and counterparlies, consistent with established Group credit policies,
guidelines and credit verification procedures. Requests for credit facilities from trade
customers undergo stages of review by National Sales and Finance Divisions.
Approvals, which are based on amounts of credit lines requested, are vested among line
managers and top management that include the President and the Chairman.

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the total carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated statements of
financial position or in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as summarized
below:

Note 2013 2012

* Cash in bank and cash equivalents '
(net of cash on hand) 6 P46,356 22,033
Derivative assets ' 7 666 39
Availablie-for-sale financial assets & 9215 911
.Trade and other receivables - net 9 67,667 57,731
Due from related parties 15 10,877 10,788
Long-term receivables - net 15 45 72
Noncurrent deposits 15 92 37
P126,618 P91,661

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments is
considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable entities with high external
credit ratings. The credit quality of these financial assets is considered to be high grade.

In monitoring trade receivables and credit lines, the Group maintains up-to-date records
where daily sales and collection transactions of all customers are recorded in real-time
and month-end statements of accounts are forwarded to customers as collection medium.
Finance Division’s Credit Department regularly reports to management trade receivables
balances (monthly), past due accounts (weekly) and credit utilization efficiency
{semi-annually).

Collaterals. To the extent practicable, the Group also requires collateral as security for a
credit facility to mitigate credit risk in trade receivables (Note 9). Among the collaterals
held are letters of credit, bank guarantees, real estate mortgages, cash bonds, cash
deposits and corporate guarantees valued at P4,827 and P4,89% as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively. These securities may only be called on or applied upon default of
customers.
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Credit Risk Concentration. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of
counterparty.  Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of trade and other
receivables is its cairying amount without considering collaterals or credit enhancements,
if any. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since the Group deals
with a large number of homogenous trade customers, The Group does not execute any
credit guarantee in favor of any counterparty,

The credit risk exposure of the Group based on TAR as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

are shown below (Note 9): 2
Neither Past Due Past Due but
nor Impaired not Impaired Imipaired Total
December 31, 2013 :
Reseller P4,880 P309 P37 P5,226
Lubes 253 12 20 285
Gasul 920 42 152 1,1i4
Industrial 14,321 4,550 660 19,531
Others 3214 301 103 3,618
P23,588 P5,214 P972 P29,774
Neither Past Due  Past Due but
nor Impaired  not Impaired Impaired Total
December 31, 2012
Reseller P2,648 P141 P45 P2,834
Lubes 378 10 28 416
Gasul 766 92 184 1,042
Industrial 12,937 679 682 14,298
Others 4,657 844 134 5,635
P21,386 P1,766 P1,073 P24,225

Credit Quality. In monitoring and controlling credit extended to counterparty, the Group
adopts a comprehensive credit rating system based on financial and non-financial
assessments of its customers. Financial factors being considered comprised of the
financiat standing of the customer while the non-financial aspects include but are not
limited to the assessment of the customer’s nature of business, management profile,
industry background, payment habit and both present and potential business dealings
with the Group.

Class A “High Grade” are accounts with strong financial capacity and business
performance and with the lowest default risk.

Class B “Moderate Grade™ refer to accounts of satisfactory financial capability and credit
standing but with some elements of risks where certain measure of control is necessary in
order fo mitigate risk of defauit.

Class C “Low Grade” are accounts with high probability of delinquency and default.

- 86 -



Below is the credit quality profile of the Group’s TAR as of December 31, 2013 and
2012

Trade Accounts Receivables Per Class

Class A Class B Class C Total

December 31, 2013
Reseller P2,533 P2,439 P254 P5,226
Lubes 19¢ 71 24 285
Gasul 533 416 165 1,114
Industrial 6,161 11,507 1,863 19,531
Others 990 1,998 630 3,618
P10,407 P16,431 P2,936 P29,774

Trade Accounts Receivables Per Class

Class A Class B Class C Total

December 31, 2012
Reseller P2,171 P3g7 P276 P2,834
Lubes 151 . 206 59 416
Gasul 243 302 497 1,042
Industrial 3,427 8,375 2,496 14,298
Others 3,239 2,097 299 5,635
P9,231 P11,367 P3,627 P24,225

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk pertains to the risk that the Group-will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are seitled by delivering cash or
another financial asset.

The Group's objectives to manage its liquidity risk are as follows: a) to ensure that
adequate funding is available at all times; b) to meet commitments as they arise without
incurring unnecessary costs; ¢} to be able to access funding when needed at the least
possible cost; and d) to maintain an adequate time spread of refinancing maturities.

The Group constantly monitors and manages its liquidity position, liquidity gaps or
surplus on a daily basis. A committed stand-by credit facility from several local banks is
also available to ensure availability of funds when necessary. The Group also uses
derivative instruments such as forwards and swaps to manage liquidity.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments used for liquidity
management as of December 31,2013 and 20(2.

Carrying  Contractuai I Year =1 Year- >2 Years - Over 5
2013 Amount Cash Flow or Less 2 Years 5 Years Years
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P56,398 50,398 P50,398 P . r - |
Trade and other receivables 67,667 67,667 67,667 - - -
Due from related parties 10,877 14,877 - 10,877 - - -
Derivative assets 666 G666 666 - - -
Financial assets at FVPL 117 17 iy - - -
AFS financial assets 915 942 513 304 125 -
Long-term receivables - net 45 55 8 6 15 26
Noncurrent deposits 92 922 - 2 11 79
Finaacial Liabilitics
Shon-term loans 100,071 104,532 100,532 - - -

Liabilities for crude oil
and petroleum product :
importation 38,707 38,707 38,707 - ~ -
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
(excluding taxes
payable and retirement
benefits liability) 28,266 28,266 28,266 - - -
Derivative liabilities 152 152 £52 - - -
Long-term debts
{including current

maturities) 66,187 79,008 11,899 15475 48,351 3,283
Cash bonds 363 372 - 364 3 5
Cylinder deposits 210 210 - - - 210
Other noncurrent

liabilities 3,966 3,991 - 3,938 11 42

Carrying Contractual I Year > Year- >2 Years- Over 5

2012 Amount Cash Flow or Less 2 Years 3 Ycars . Years
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P26,965 P26.,965 P26,965 P - P - P -
Trade and other receivables 57,731 57,731 57,731 - - -
Due from related parties 10,788 10,788 - 10,788 - -
Derivative assets 39 39 39 - - -
Financial assets at FVPL 147 147 [47 - - -
AFS financial assets 91l 1,026 139 488 399 -
Long-term receivables - net 72 84 8 34 le 26
Noncurrent deposils 87 87 - 4 8 75
Financial Liabilities
Short-term loans 99,735 100,174 100,174 - - -

Liabilities for crude oil
and petroleum product
importation 24,960 24960 24,960 - - -
Accounts payable and
accrnred expenses
(excluding taxes
payable and retirement. .
benefits liability) 14,109 14,109 14,109 - - -
Derivative Habilities 245 245 245 - - -
Long-term debts ' '
(including current

maturities) 56,013 71,822 3,560 [1,208 52,856 4,198
Cash bonds 360 365 342 11 6 6
Cylinder deposits 213 213 - - - 213
Other noncurrent

fiabilitics [,862 1,862 - 1,815 24 23
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Commodity Price Risk

Commodity price risk is the risk that future cash flows from a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Group enters into various commodity
derivatives to manage ifs price risks on strategic commodities. Commodity hedging
allows stability in prices, thus offsetting the risk of volatile market fluctuations. Through
hedging, prices of commodities are fixed al levels acceptable to the Group, thus
protecting raw material cost and preserving margins, For consumer (buy) hedging
transactions, if prices go down, hedge positions may show marked-to-market losses;
however, any loss in the marked-to-market position is offset by the resulting lower
physical raw material cost. While for producer (sell) hedges, if prices go down, hedge
positions may show marked-to-market gains; however, any gain in the marked-to-market
position is offset by the resulting lower selling price.

To minimize the Group’s risk of potential losses due to volatility of international crude
and product prices, the Group implermnented commodity hedging for crude and petroleum
products. The hedges are intended to protect crude inventories from downward price risk
and margins of Mean of Platts of Singapore (MOPS)-based sales. Hedging policy
(including the use of commodity price swaps, buying of put options, collars and 3-way
options) developed by the Commodity Risk Management Committee is in place.
Decisions are guided by the conditions set and approved by the Group’s management.

Other Market Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its investments carried at fair value (FVPL. and
AFS financial assets). . The Group manages its risk arising from changes in market price
by monitoring the changes in the market price of-the investments.

Capital Management

The Group’s capital management policies and programs aim to provide an optimal capital
structure that would ensure the Group’s ability 1o continue as a going concern while at
the same time provide adequate returns to the shareholders. As such, it considers the best
trade-off between risks associated with debt.financing and relatively higher cost of equity
funds.

An enterprise resource planning system is used to monitor and forecast the Group’s
overall financial position. The Group regularly updates its near-term and long-term
financial projections to consider the latest available market data in order to preserve the
desired capital structure. The Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares as well as increase or decrease assets and/or liabilities,
depending on the prevailing internal and external business conditions.

The Group monitors capital via carrying amount of equity 4s stated in the consolidated”
statements of {inancial position. The Group's capital for the covered reporting period is
summarized in the table below:

2013 2012

Total assets : P357,458 P280,333
Total liabilities 245,570 203,430

. Total equity 111,888 76,903
Debt to equily ratio 2.2:1 2.6:1

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the year.
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35, Financial Assg.ts and Financial Liabilities-

The table below presents a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values
of the Group’s financial instruments as of December 31:

2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Nore Value Value Value Value

‘Financial assets (FA):

Cash and cash equivalents G P50,398 50,398 P26,965 P26.965
Trade and other receivables 9 .67,667 67,667 37,731 57,731
Due from related parties ') 10.877 10,877 10,788 10,788
Long-term receivables - net 15 45 45 T2 72
Noncurrent deposils 15 92 92 87 87
Loans and receivables 129,079 129,679 95,643 95,643
AFS financial assets 8 215 915 91t 911
Financial assets at FVPL 7 17 117 147 147
Derivative assets 7 666 666 39 39
FA at FVPL 783 783 186 186
Total financial assets P130,777 P130,777 P96, 740 P96,74(

2013 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Note Value Value Value Value

Financial Habilities (FL): .

Short-term loans /6 P1O007L  P100,07! P99,735 P99.735
Liabilities for crude oil and

petroleum product

importation 38,707 38,707 24,960 24,960
Trade and other payables

(excluding specific taxes

and other taxes payable

and retirement benefits

liability) 17 28,266 28,266 14,109 14,109
Long-term debt including

current portion 18 66,187 66,187 56,013 56,013
Cash bonds 20 363 363 360 360
Cylinder deposits . 20 210 210 213 213
Other noncurrent liabilities 20 3,966 3,966 1,862 1,862
L. at amortized cost - 237,770 237,770 197,252 197,252
Derivative liabilities 152 152 245 245
Total financial liabilities P237,922 P237,922 P197,497  P197,497

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class
of financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables, Due from Related Parties,
Long-term Receivables and Noncurrent Deposits. The carrying amount of cash and cash
equivalents and receivables approximates fair value primarily due to the relatively short- -
term maturities of these financial instruments. In the case of long-term receivables and
noncurrent deposits, the fair value is based on the present value of expected future cash
flows using the applicable discount rates based on current market rates of identical or
similar quoted instruments.
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Derivatives. The fair values of [reestanding and bifurcated forward currency transactions
are caleulated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar
maturity profiles. Marked-to-market valuation of commodity hedges were based on the
forecasted crude and product prices by Mitsui & Co. Commodity Risk Management Lid.
{MCRM), an independent trading group.

Financial Assets at FVPL and AFS Financial Assets. The fair values of publicly traded
instruments and similar investments are based on quoted market prices in an active
markel. For debt instruments with no quoted market prices, a reasonable estimate of their
fair values is calculated based on the expected cash flows from the instruments
discounted using the applicable discount rates of comparable instruments quoted in active
markets. Unquoted equity securities are carried at cost less impairment.

Long-term Debt - Floating Rate. The carrying amounts of floating rate loans with
quarterly interesi rate repricing approximate their fair values.

Cash Bonds, Cylinder Deposits and Other Noncurrent Lighilities. Fair value is estimated
as the present value of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable market rates
for similar types of instruments as of reporting date. Effective rates used in 2013 and
2012 are 5.34% and 6.14%, respectively.

Short-term Loans, Liabilities for Crude Oil and Petroleum Product Importation and
Trade and Other Payables. The carrying amount of short-term loans, liabilities for crude
oit and petroleum product importation and trade and other payables approximates fair
value primarily due to the relatively short-term maturities of these financial instruments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group’s derivative financiat instruments according to the type of financial risk being
managed and the details of freestanding and embedded derivative financial instruments
are discussed below.

The Group enters into various currency and commodity derivative contracts to manage its
exposure on foreign currency and commodity price risk. The portfolio is a mixture of -
instruments including forwards, swaps and options. These include freestanding and
embedded derivatives found in host contracts, which are not designated as accounting
hedges. Changes in fair value of these instruments are recognized directly in profit or
loss.

Freestanding Derivatives
Freestanding derivatives consist of commeodity and currency entered into by the Group.

Currency Forwards

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Group has outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts with aggregate notional amount of US$1,445 million and US$963 million,
respectively, and with various maturities in 2014 and 2013. As of December 31, 2013
and 2012, the net fair value of these currency forwards amounted to P640 and (P217),
respectively.

Commodity Swaps

The Group has outstanding swap agreements covering its oil requirements, with various
maturities in 2014, Under the agreements, payment is made either by the Group or its
counterparty for the difference between the hedged fixed price and the relevant monthiy
average index price,
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Total outstanding equivalent notional quantity covered by the commodity swaps were
2.0 million barrels and 0.5 million barrels for 2013 and 2012, respectively. The
estimated net receipts for these fransactions amounted to P6 and P30 for 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Commodity Options
As of December 31, 2013, the Group has outstanding 3-way options designated as hedge
of forecasted purchases of crude oil with a notional quantity of 1.0 million barrels,

The call and put optiens can be exercised at various calculation dates in 2014 with
specified quantities on each caleulation date. The estimated amount net payout of these
call and put options as of December 31, 2013 amounted to P41,

Outstanding hedge in 2012 with notional quantities of 0.2 million barrels has an actual
net receipt of P35,

Embedded Derivatives

Embedded foreign currency derivatives exist in certain US dollar-denominated sales and
purchases contracts for various fuel products of Petron. Under the sales and purchase
contracts, the peso equivalent is determined using the average Philippine Dealing System
rate on the menth preceding the month of delivery.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the lotal outstanding notional amount of currency
forwards embedded in non-financial contracts amounted to US$83 million. These non-
financial contracts consist mainly of foreign currency-denominated service contracts,
purchase orders and sales agreements. The embedded forwards are not clearly and
closely related o their respective host contracts. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
netl positive (negative) fair value of these embedded currency forwards amounted fo
(P68) and P 1 1, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Group recognized
marked-to-market gains (losses) from freestandmg and embedded derivatives amounting
to P2,514, (P845), and P205, respectively (Note 26).

Fair Value Changes on Derivatives
The net movements in fair value of all derivative transactions in 2013 and 2012 are as
foliows:

Note 2013 2012
Fair value at beginning of year (P206) (P12)
Net changes in fair value during the year 26 2,514 (845)
Fair value of seitled instruments (1,794) 651
Batance at end of year P514 {(P206)

Fair Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of
financial position are categorized in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. This
hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three levels based on the significance
of inputs used in measuring the fair value of the {inancial assets and liabilities.
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The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. The different levels have been defined as follows:”

* Llevell: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;
= Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level3:  inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market
data.
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Financial Assets:

FVPL Pit7 P - PL17

Dertvative assets - 666 666

AFS financial assets 757 158 915
Financtal Liabilities;

Derivative liabilities - (152) (152)
2012 Level | Level 2 Total
Financial Assets:

FVPL P147 P - Pl147

Derivative assets - 39 - 39

. AFS financial assets 304 107 911
Financial Liabilities: _
Derivative liabilities - (245) (245)

The Group has no financial instruments valued based on Level 3 as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012. During the year, there were no transfers between Level |
and Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

36.

Registration with the Board of Investments (BOI)

Mixed Xylene, Benzene, Toluene (BTX) and Propylene Recovery Units

On October 20, 2005, Petron registered with the BOI under the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987 (Executive Order 226) as: (1) a non-pioneer, new export producer status of
Mixed Xylene; (2) a pioneer, new export producer status of Benzene and Toluene; and
(3)a pioneer, new domestic producer status of Propylene. Under the terms of its
registration, Petron is subject fo certain requirements principally that of exporting at least
70% of the production of Mixed Xylene and 50% of the combined production of Benzene
and Toluene.
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As a registered enterprise, Petron is entitled to the following benefits on its production of
petroleum products used as petrochemical feedstock:

a.

Income Tax Holiday (ITH): (1) for four years from May 2008 or actual start of
commercial operations, whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of
registration for Mixed Xylene subject to base figure of 120,460 metric tons per year
representing Petron’s highest attained production volume for the last three (3) years:
(2) for six years from May 2008 or actual start of commercial operations, whichever
is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of registration for Benzene and Toluene;
and (3) for six years from December 2007 or actual start of commercial operations,
whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of registration for Propylene.

Tax credit equivalent to the national internal revenue taxes and duties paid on raw
materials and supplies and semi-manufactured products used in producing its export
product and forming parts thereof for ten years from start of commercial operations,

Simplification of custom procedures.

Access to Customs Bonded Manufacturing Warehouse (CBMW) subject to Custom
rules and regulations provided firm exports at least 70% of production output of
Mixed Xylene and 50% of combined production of Benzene and Toluene.

Exemption from wharfage dues, any export tax, duty, imposts and fees for a ten year
period from date of registration.

Importation of consigned equipment for a period of ten years from the date of
registration subject to the posting of re-export bond.

Exemption from taxes and duties on imported spare parts and consumable supplies
for export producers with CBMW exporting at least 70% production of Mixed
Xylene and 50% of combined production of Benzene and Toluene.

Petron may qualify to import capital equipment, spare parts, and accessories at zero
(one percent for Propylene) duty from date of registration up to June 5, 2006
pursuant lo Executive Order (EO) No. 313 and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations.

Mixed Xylene entitlement period ended in April 2012 and registration with BOI was
cancelled on August 10, 2012,

Petron was granted a one-year extension of I'TH incentive for its propylene sales.

Fluidized Bed Catalytic Cracker (PetroFCC) Unit

On December 20, 2005, the BOI approved Petron’s application under RA 8479 for new
investiment at its Bataan Refinery for the PetroFCC. Subject to Petron’s compliance with
the terms and conditions of registration, the BOI is extending the following major
incentives:

a.

ITH for five years without extension or bonus year from December 2008 or actual
start of commercial operations, whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the
date of registration subject to a rate of exemption computed based on the % share of
product that are subject to retooling.

Minimum duty of three percent and VAT on imported capital equipment and
accompanying spare parts.
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¢. Tax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabricated
capital equipment. This shall be equivalent to the difference between the tariff rate
and the three percent (3%) duty immposed on the imported counterpart.

d. Importation of consigned equipment for a period of five years from date of
registration subject to posting of the appropriate re-export bond; provided that such
consigned equipment shall be for the exclusive use of the registered activity.

e. Exemption from wharfage dues, any export tax, duty, imposts and fees for a ten year
period from date of registration.

f. Exemption from taxes and duties on imported spare parts for consigned equipment
with bonded manufacturing warehouse.

g. Exemption from real property tax on producﬁon equipment or machinery.
h.  Exemption from contractor’s tax.

PetroFCC entitlement period ended in February 2013 and registration with BOI was
cancelled on July 4, 2013.

70 MW Coal-Fired Power Plant (Limay. Bataan)

On November 3, 2010, Petron registered with the BO! as new operator of a 70 MW Coal-
Fired Power Plant on a pioneer status with non-pioneer incentives under the Omnibus
Investments Code of 1987 (EO No. 226). Subject to Petron’s compliance with the terms
and conditions of registration, the BOI is extending the following major incentives:

a. ITH for four years from July 2012 or actual start of commercial operations,
whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of registration limited to the
revenue generated from the electricity sold to the grid.

b. Importation of consigned equipment for a period of ten years from the date of
registration subject to the posting of re-export bond.

¢. Petron may qualify to import capital equipment, spare parts and accessories at zero
percent duty from date of registration up to June 16, 201! pursuant to EQ No. 528
and its Implementing Rules and Regulations.

The power plant started commercial operations on May 10, 2013 and the Parent
Company availed ITH from May to September 2013,

RMP-2 Project
On June 3, 2011, the BO[ approved Petron’s application under RA 8479 as an Existing

Industry Participant with New Investment in Modernization/Conversion of Bataan
Refinery’s RMP-2. The BOl is extending the following major incentives:

a. ITH for five years without extension or bonus year from July 2015 or actual start of
commercial operations, whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of

registration based on the formula of the ITH rate of exemption.

b. Minimum duty of -three percent and VAT on imported capital equipment and
accompanying spare parts.
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¢. Importation of consigned equipment for a period of five years from date of
registration subject to posting of the appropriate re-export bond; provided that such
consigned equipment shall be for the exclusive use of the registered activity.

d. Tax credit on domestic capital equipment shall be granted on locally fabricated
capital equipment which is equivalent to the difference between the tariff rate and the
three percent duty imposed on the imported counterpart.

¢. Exemption from real property tax on production equipment or machinery.
f. Exemption from contractor’s tax.

70 MW Solid Fuel-Fired Power Plant

On February 14, 2013, Petron registered with the BO! as an expanding operator of a 70
MW Solid Fuel-Fired Power Plant on a pioneer status under the Omnibus Investments
Code of 1987 (EO No. 226). Subject to Peiron’s compliance with the terms and
conditions of registration, the BOI is extending the following major incentives:

a. ITH for three years from December 2014 or actual siart of commercial operations,
whichever is earlier, but in no case earlier than the date of registration limited to the
revenue generated from the electricity sold to the grid, other entities and/or
communities,

b. Importation of capital equipment, spare parts and accessories at zero (0) duty from
the date of effectivity of Executive Order No. 70 and its Implementing Rules and
Regulations for a period of five (5) years reckoned from the date of.registration or
until the expiration of EQ 70, whichever is earlier.

¢. lmportation of consigned equipment for a period of ten years from the date of
registration subject to the posting of re-export bond.

Yeatly certificates of entitlement have been timely obtained by Petron to support its ITH
credits,

37. Segment Information

Management identifies segments based on business and geographic locations. These
operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made on the basis of
adjusted segment operating resulis. The CEO (the chief operating decision maker)
reviews management reports on a regular basis.

The Group’s major sources of revenues are as follows:

a. Sales of petroleum and other related products which include gasoline, diesel and.
kerosene offered to motorists and public transport operators through its service
station network around the country.

b. Insurance premiums from the business and operation of all kinds of insurance and
reinsurance, on sea as well as on land, of properties, goods and merchandise, of
transportation or conveyance, against fire, earthquake, marine perils, accidents and
all others forms and lines of insurance authorized by law, except life insurance.

¢. Lease of acquired real estate properties for petroleum, refining, storage and
distribution facilities, gasoline service stations and other related structures.
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d. Sales on wholesale or retail and operation of service stations, retail outlets,
restaurants, convenience stores and the like.

¢.  Export sales of various petroleum and non-fuel products to other Asian countries
such as South Korea, Taiwan, China, Singapore, Cambodia, Malaysia, Indonesia,
Hong Kong and Thaiiand.

f. Sale of polypropylene resins to domestic plastic converters of yarn, film and injection
moulding grade plastic products.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
operating cash, receivables, inventories and property, plant and equipment, net of
allowances and impairment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and
consist principally of accounts payable, wages, taxes currently payable and accrued
liabilitics. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred taxes.

Inter-segment Transactions
Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between
operating segments. Transfer prices between operating segments are set on an arm’s
length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Such transfers are
eliminated in consolidation.

Major Customer .
The Group does not have a single external customer from which sales revenue generated

amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group.

The following tables present revenue and income information and certain asset and
liabitity information regarding = the business segments for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,

Elimination/

Petrofeum  [nsurance Leasing  Marketing Others Total
2013
Revenue:

Extcrnal sales P461,087 P - P - P2,551 | LN P463,638
Inter-segment sales 221,647 T4 560 - (222,281) -
Segment results 11,012 48 211 68 338 11,684
MNet income ’ 5,207 34 41 84 (273) 5,092

Assets and liabilities: '
Segment assets 392,599 1,606 4,933 1,083 (42,925) 357,296
Segment liabilities 264,539 474 3,888 324 (28,256) 240,965
Other segment
information;
Praperty, plant and
cquipment 136,249 - - 251 5,147 141,647
Depreciation and o
amortszation 5,691 - 2 51 62 5,806
Interest expense 5,461 - 189 1 (189 5,462
Interest incotne 1,440 21 2 11 (189) 1,285
[ncome tax expense 1,747 9 14 17 63 1,850
Forward
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Elimination/

Petroicum  Insurance Leasing  Marketing Others Total
2012
Revenue:
External sales P422 199 P - P - P2,596 P P424,795
Inter-segment sales 182,455 117 38 - (182,955) -
Segment results 1273 a0 171 78 248 7,860
Net income 1818 159 37 94 (328) 1,780
Assets and liabilities: '
Segment assets L 315379 1,737 4,764 1,089 (42,7143 280,255
Segment liabilities 225040 328 3,759 313 (29,153) 200,287
Other segment
wformation:
Property, plant and
equipment 98,904 - - 266 4,941 104,111
Depreciation and
amortization 5,067 - 2 37 7 5,113
Interest expense 7,507 - 137 1 (437 7,508
Interest income 1,153 28 3 20 (85) 1,121
income lax expense 385 8 17 19 10 459
Efimination/
Petroleurn  Insurance Leasing  Marketing Others Total
20H1
Revenue:
External sales P272.287 P - P P1,669 P - P273,956
inter-segment sales 202,302 [02 357 - (202,761) -
Segment results 13,875 52 152 74 064 i5,117
Net income 8,401 165 27 9l 246 8,930
Assets and liabilities: )
Segment assets 186,776 t,834 3,954 918 (14,375) 179,107
Segment liabilities 123456 [46 3,018 224 {13,222 113,622
Other segment
information:
Property, plant and
equipment 46,465 - - 205 3,776 50,446
Depreciation and
amortization 3,615 - - 42 - 3,657
Interest expense 5123 - 123 1 (123) 5,124
. Interest income 1,448 35 4 16 (123) 1,380
Income tax expense 2,782 24 18 2 (9 2,827

Inter-segment sales transactions amounted to P222281, P182,955 and P202,761 for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.

The following table presents additional information on the petroleum business segment .
of the Group for the years ended December 31, 201 3,2012 and 201 1:

Reseiler Lube Gasul Industrial Others Total

2013
Revenue 245,799 P3,086 P24,478 P132,455 P55,269 P461,087
Property, plant and

equipment 20,708 187 421 207 114,726 136,249
Capital expenditures 2,689 - 68 127 89,382 92.266
2002
Revenue P179,044 P2,996  P24,899 PI32,049 P83,211 P422,199
Property, plant and ;

equipment 17,905 233 446 129 80,191 98,904
Capital expenditures 1,250 ] 65 32 56,243 57,591
2011
Revenue P107,782 P2,531  P19,500 P105,741 P36,733 P272.287
Property, plant and

equipment 5,189 279 205 78 40,714 46,465
Capital expendiiures 303 - 11 - 17,854 18,168
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Geographical Segments

The following table presents segment assets of the Group for the year 2013 and 2012,

2013 2012

Local : P284,845 P213,013
International 72,451 67,242
' P357,296 P280,255

The following table presents revenue information regarding the geographical segments of
the Group for the years ended December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011.

Elimination/

Petroleum JInsurance Leasing  Marketing Others Total
2013
Revenue:
Local P265,98% P21 P56 r2,551 (I'4,676) P264,445
Export/international 416,745 53 - - {217,605) 199,193
2012
Revenue:
L.ocal 1264728 P55 383 P2,596 {P2,292) P265,470
Export/international 339,926 62 - - (180,663) 159,325
2011
Revenue: .
Local P246,009 P71 P357 1,669 (P1410) P246,695
Export/international 228,580 31 - - (201,350} 27261

38. Events After the Reporting Date

On February 6, 2014, the Parent Company paid distributions amounting to 1US$28.125
million (P1,674) to the holders of USCS.

On March 24, 2014, the BOD approved cash dividends of P0.05 per share of common
shareholders as of April 8, 2014 which will be paid on April 23, 2014,

On March 26, 2014, PCERP sold 470,000,000 comtmon shares of the Parent Company at
a price of P11.50 per share through the facﬂmes of PSE with settlement date of April 1,
2014,

39. Other Matters

a. Petron has unused letters of credit totaling approximately P29,176, P31,417 and
P25,452 as of December 31,2013, 2012 and 201 1, respectively.

b. Tax Credit Certificates Related Cases

In 1998, the Bureau of Intenal Revenue (BIR) issued a deficiency excise tax
assessment against Petron relating to Petron’s use of P659 of Tax Credit Certificate
(*“TCCs™) to pay certain excise tax obligations from 1993 to 1997, The TCCs were
transferred to Petron by suppliers as payment for fuel purchases. Petron contested the
BIR’s assessment before the Court of Tax Appeals (CTA). In July 1999, the CTA
ruled that as a fuel supplier of BOl-registered companies, Petron was a qualified
transferee of the TCCs and that the collection of the BIR of the alleged deficiency
excise taxes was contrary to law. On March 21, 2012, the Court of Appeals
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promulgated a decision in favor of Petron and against the BIR affirming the ruling of
the CTA striking down the assessment issued by the BIR to Petron. On
April 19, 2012, a motion for reconsideration was filed by the BIR, which was denied
by the Court of Appeals in its resobution dated October 10, 2012. The BIR elevated
the case to the Supreme Court through a petition for review on certiorari dated
December 5, 2012. On June 17, 2013, Petron filed its comment on the petition for
review filed by the BIR. The petition was still pending as of December 31, 2013.

Pandacan Terminal Operations

In November 2001, the City of Manila enacted Ordinance No. 8027 (Ordinance
8027) reclassifying the areas occupied by the oil terminals of the Parent Company,
Pilipinas Shell Petroleum Corporation (Shell) and Chevron Philippines Inc.
{Chevron) from industrial to commercial. This reclassification made the operation
of the oil terminals in Pandacan, Manila illegal. However, in June 2002, the Parent
Company, together with Shell and Chevron, entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) with the City of Manila and the Department of Energy
(DOE), agreeing to scale down operations, recognizing that this was a sensible and
practical solution to reduce the economic impact of Ordinance 8027. In December
2002, in reaction to the MOU, the Social Justice Society (SJS) filed a petition with
the Supreme Court against the Mayor of Manila asking that the latter be ordered to
enforce Ordinance 8027. In April 2003, the Parent Company filed a petition with the
Regional Trial Court (RTC) to annul Ordinance 8027 and enjoin its implementation.
On the basis of a status quo order issued by the RTC, Mayor of Manila ceased
implementation of Ordinance 8027.

The City of Manila subsequently issued the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and
Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance 8119), which applied to the entire City of Manila.
Ordinance 8119 allowed the Parent Company (and other non-conforming
establishments) a seven-year grace period to vacate. As a result of the passage of.
Ordinance 8119, which was thought to effectively repeal Ordinance 8027, in
April 2007, the RTC dismissed the petition filed by the Parent Company questioning
Ordinance 8027.

However, on March 7, 2007, in the case filed by SJS, the Supreme Court rendered a
decision {(March 7 Decision) directing the Mayor of Manila to immediately enforce
Ordinance 8027, On March 12, 2007, the Parent Company, together with Shell and
Chevron, filed motions with the Supreme Court seeking intervention and
reconsideration of the March 7 Decision. In the same year, the Parent Company also
filed a petition before the RTC of Manila praying for the nullification of Ordinance
8E19 on the grounds that the reclassification of the oil terminals was arbitrary,
oppressive and confiscatory, and thus unconstitutional, and that the said Ordinance
contravened the provisions of the Water Code of the Philippines (Presidential Decree
No. 1067, the Water Code). On February 13, 2008, the Parent Company, Shell and
Chevron were allowed by the Supreme Court to intervene in the case filed by SJS but
their motions for reconsideration were denied. The Supreme Court declared
Ordinance 8027 valid and dissolved all existing injunctions against the
implementation of the Ordinance 8027.

In May 2009, Manila City Mayor Alfredo Lim approved Ordinance No. 8187

(Ordinance 8187), which amended Ovdinance 8027 and Ordinance 8119 and
permitted the continued operations of the oil terminals in Pandacan.
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On August 24, 2012, the RTC of Manila ruled that Section 23 of Ordinance 8119
relating to the reclassification of subject oil terminals had already been repealed by
Ordinance 8187; hence any issue pertaining thereto had become moot and academic.
The RTC of Manila also decfared Section 55 of Ordinance &119 null and void for
being in conflict with the Water Code. Nonetheless, the RTC upheld the validity of
all other provisions of Ordinance $119. ©On September 25, 2012, the Parent
Company sought clarification and partial consideration of the August 24 decision and
prayed for the nullification of the entire Ordinance 8119. In an Order dated
December 18, 2012, the RTC of Manila denied the motion filed by the Parent
Company. The Parent Company filed a notice of appeal on January 23, 2013, Inan
Order dated February 6, 2013, the RTC of Manila directed that the records of the
case be forwarded to the Court of Appeals. On April 15, 2013, Petron received an
Order dated April 1, 2013 requiring it to file its appellant’s brief. Petron submitted
its appeliant’s brief on July 29, 2013. On December 19, 2013, Petron, through its
counsel, received the City of Manila’s appellee’s brief dated December 12, 2013, As
of December 31, 2013, the appeal remained pending,

With regard to Ordinance 8187, petitions were filed before the Supreme Court,
seeking for its nullification and the enjoinment of its implementation. The Parent
Company filed a manifestation on November 30, 2010 informing the Supreme Court
that, without prejudice to its position in the cases, it had decided to cease operation of
its petroleum product storage facilities in Pandacan within 5 years or not later than
January 2016 due to the many unfounded environmental issues being raised that
tarnish the image of the Parent Company and the various amendments being made to
the zoning ordinances of the City of Manila when the composition of the local
government changes thal prevented the Parent Company from making long-term
plans. In a letter dated July 6, 2012 (with copies to the offices of the Vice Mayor and
the City Council of Manila), the Parent Company reiterated its commitment to cease
the operation of its petroleum product storage facilities and transfer them to another
location by January 2016. As of December 3 1, 2013, the petitions remained pending.

Oil Spill Incident in Guimaras

On August 11, 2006, MT Solar 1, a third party vessel contracted by the Parent
Company to transport approximately two million liters of industrial fuel oil, sank 13
nautical miles southwest of Guimaras, an island province in the Western Visayas
region of the Philippines. In separate investigations by the Philippine Department of
Justice (DOJ) and the Special Board of Marine Inquiry (SBMI), both agencies found
the owners of MT Solar I liable. The DOJ found the Parent Company not criminally
liable, but the SBMI found the Parent Company to have overloaded the vessel. The
Parent Company has appealed the findings of the SBMI to the Philippine Department
of Transportation and Communication (DOTC) and is awaiting its resolution. The
Parent Company believes that SBMI can impose administrative penalties on vessel
owners and crew, but has no authority to penalize other parties, such as the Parent
Company, which are charterers,

In 2009, complaints for violation of the Philippine Clean Water Act of 2004
(Republic Act No. 9275, the Clean Water Act) and homicide and less serious
physical injuries were filed against the Parent Company, Complainants claim that
their exposure to and close contact with waters along the shoreline and mangroves
affected by the oil spill has caused them major health problems. On
February 13, 2012, an Information was filed against the owner and the Captain of
MT Solar | and Messrs. Khalid Al-Faddagh and Nicasio Alcantara, former President
and Chairman of the Parent Company, respectively, for violation of the Clean Water
Act. On March 28, 2012, the court dismissed the information for lack of probable
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cause and for lack of jurisdiction over the offense charged. The Provincial Prosecutor
and the private prosecutor filed a motion for reconsideration of this March 28 Order
of the court. On August 13, 2012, the court issued an order denying the said motion
for reconsideration,

Other complaints for non-payment of compensation for the clean-up operations
during the oil spill were filed by a total of 1,063 plaintiffs who allegedly did not
receive any payment of their claims for damages arising from the oil spill. The total
claims for both cases amount to P292. Both cases were pending as of December 31,
2013.

Other Proceedings

The Group is also party to certain other proceedings arising out of the ordinary
course of its business, including legal proceedings with respect to tax, regulatory and
other matters. While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty,
management believes that the final outcome of these other proceedings will not have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATON

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Petron Corporation

SMC Head Office Complex

40 San Miguel Avenue

Mandaluyong City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements of Petron Corporation (the “Company™) and Subsidiaries, as at

December 31,2013 and 2012 and for each of the three vears in the period ended December 3 [,
2013, included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2014,

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
staternents taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the following
accompanying additional components is the responsibility of the Company’s management,

* Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividends Declaration-
*  Map of Conglomerata

* Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

" Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68-E

This supplementary information is presented for purposes of commplying with the Securities
Regulation Code Rule 63, As Amended, and is not a required part of the basic consolidated
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the basic consolidated financial statemerits and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation (o the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

ADOR
Partner
CPA License No. 0029620
SEC Accraditation No, 0464-AR-2, Group A, valid until March 24,2016
Tax ldentification No. 112-071-634
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001987-10-2013
Issued May 9, 2013: valid untl May 8. 2016
PTR No. 4225135MC :
Issued Janvary 22014 at Makati City

. MEJIA

March 24, 2014
Makati City, Metro Manila

2014 RG. Mansbot & Co., a Philipoms parnesship ang o membar firm PRC-BOA Regrstration Ny, 0002, vali uhtl Decambnr 31, 2016

of tha KPMG network of indspandent fifms alfiliate 0 with KPRG intemstions! SEC Accreditation No. 00D4-FR-3, Group A, velid vt Novamber 32,1034
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PETRON CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statement

Independe

INDEX TO SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULFES
DECEMBER 31, 2013

of Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

i Auditor®s Report on the SECC Supplementary Schedules

Filed Separaicly from the Basic Consolidated Financial Stafements

Supplementary Schedules to Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Schedules of Annex 68 - E

A,
B.

C.

D,
L
F.
G.
H.

Financial Assets

Amounts Reeetvable from Directors, Officers. Emplovees, Relaied
Parties, and Principal Stockliolders

Amounts Receivable and Pavable from Related Parties which are
Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Stalements

Goodwill and Other Intangible A ssets

Long-term Debt

Indebtedness o Related Parties

Guarantees ol Securities of Other Issuers

Capital Stock

Map of the Conglomerate swithin which the Group belongs
Tabular Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

" Ratance of dvailable for Sale Securities and Feeir Vefue Throwgh

assels.

Page No.
'" N?\m)
NA[M

| -2

NA®
NA
5
6
7

rafit or Loss is less than 5% of tetal crrren

b - R . . . o , .
¢ Taiance af aeconnt is less then 19 of the toral assets of the Company and ne individuaily sunttficant advanees
over P00,

el Bufanc

e of account is less than 5% of totol assers af the Company

Supplementary Schedule to Parent Financial Statements

Reconciliation of Parent Company’s Retained Earnings Available

Deelaration

{or Dividend

3
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PETRON CORPORANON AND SUBSIDIARIES

Framework for the Preparation and Preseniatlon of Financial
Statements

Conceplual Famaewok Phase A Obieclives ond qualiative v
characteristics
- PFRSs Prucllce Statement Manugement Commentary v
Phllippine Financiol Repaorting Standards
PFRS 1 Firsti-time Adoption of Philippine Financicl Rexporiing v
(Revised)  Stondords
Amendments 1o PERS T and BAS 27: Cost of an v
nveslment in o Subsicicuy, Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associole
Amendmenis to PERS 1 Addilional Exermgtions ior Pist- -
Hme Adomten
Amerdmend o PERS §- Limifec.;' Exemplion iom v
Comparative FIRS 7 Disclosuras lor Fist-fime Adoplers
Amercments to PFRS 1: Severe Hypernlialion and v
Removal of Fixed Dote lor First-fime Adoplers
Amendments lo PFRS I: Government Loans v .
P . 1]
PFRS 2 Share-bosed Payment o
Amendments fo PFRS 2: Vesting Condilions and v :
LCanceliaions ;
Amendmentis fo PFRS 2: Group Cash-seltied Share- -
bésed Payment fransactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinations v
(Revised)
PFRS 4 {insurance Conlracis v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4* Finoneics Guaranice
 Contracls ’
1
"PFRS 5 “Non-cutrent Assels Hetd for Sole and Discontinued v
Operolions
PFRS 4 | Exploration for and Evaiuation of Mineral Resources v
' PR H P - - B . * - .. H
PFRS 7 Hnanciol inslrumenis: Disclosures v
,Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition v
Amendments 10 PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclassification of v 5
Finoncial Assels
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclussification of
Financict Assets - Effeclive Dale and lansition
Amendmenis 1o PFRS 7 Improving Disclosures about v
Financial ksiruments
Arnendmenls 1o PFRS 7: Disclosures - fransfers of y
Financial Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offse tting Financiol
Assets and Finoncial Liobifies
~Amendments fo PFRS 7: Mandaridry Efective Dale of v
PERS 9 ondd Transition Disclosures
PFRS 8 Operoling Segments ' v

TPFRS 9 fFnancidl Instrumens v




PFRS 10
PERS 11
PFRS 12

PFRS 13

Amendments to PFRS 91 Mandatory Effeciive Dote of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosuregs

Consoliclaled Fnancial Statements
Joint Arrangements
Disclosure ol interesls in Olher Frlities

fAmendmenls to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12
Consol:daled Firrancial Slatements, Joint Alrangemaernts
und Disclosure of Interasfs in Other Entilies: Transilion

) (;U;dun(,f*

Amendmenls Io PFRS 10, Pf Rb I) and PAS 27 (2001
Investmerd Entitias

Fair Vaiue Measuremen!

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1
‘{Revised)

PAS 2

PAsT

:PAS B

‘PAS 10
|

TPAS 11
{PAS 12

PAS 16
PAS 17
PAS TB

FAS1?
{Amended) -

Presentation of Financial Staiements
Amendment to PAS } Capl%oi D|s<,!osuros

Amendmeanls to PA% 32 and PA‘§ 1 Puttable anncaoi
Inmumenls and Chbligations Arising an quu;dahon

Amendmems lo PAS I: Presenrohon ot tems of ther

Comprehensive Income

Inventones
Siﬂiemenr of Cash Flows

Accounling Palicies, Changes in Accounfing EBslimales
and Errors

Events orses Ihe Reporlmg Period
C‘ons!ruu ion Cc)mfc(‘ls
income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Dc.ierred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asseris '

) Properiy Plani ond Equ:pmem

Leﬂses

Revenue
; Employee B@nefns

Amendrmenis 1o PAS 19 Defmed Benefll Plans:

Employee Confiibutions

PAS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and [Disclosure of

: Gcwunmeni Assmcnce

PAS 21

PAS 23
{Revised)

iFAS 24
j (Revised)

PAS 26
PAS 27

‘The Elfects of f‘honges in rore;gn Exchonge Rates
\ Amendmenf Net Invesimen? |n a Fore{qn Opemhon
i

i Borrowing Cmis
Related Party Disclosures

Accounting and Reporiing by Retfirement Benefil Plans

Separate Financial $Statements

{Amended} -




* (IR Tk
PAS 28 in veslmPnh i Assoc:ufm ond Joint Ver\ ures
{Amended}

PAS 29 Financiai Reporting in Hyperinfialionary Economies v
PAS 32 Fingnciol instruments: Disclosure and Presemiation v

Amendmenis (o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Adsing on Liguidalion

Amendmeant 1o PAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues v

Amenciments {o PAS 32 Offseting Fnancicl Assels and
Finoncict Liabililies

PAS 33 Eamings per Shore v
PAS 34 interim financial Reporting v
(PAS 36 Impdirment of Assets v

Amenciments 10 PAS 36: Recoverable Amounl
Disclosures for Nan- chm:'a. Asseis

PAS-37 PIOVISIODS Conhngem U(}bllmes and Conhnqenl Asseis v
PAS 38 inionglbfe Asspts
PAS 39 - Financial Instrumenls Recoqnmon cmd Mecsuremem ; v
H }

~Amendments lo PAS 39: Transition and nitial ‘?ec,oqruhon
=o[ Financial Assets and Finanaial Licbmiles :

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting : v
of Forecas! Inhogrown Transactions

Nnendmenis to PAS 39: The Fair Value Qpiion v

-Armendments 1o PAS 39 and PERS 4: Fingnciol Guarantee
:Conlracls

%/\mendmenfs to PAS 39 and PFRS 7; Reclassification af
Fmoncml Asse1s

i Amendmen?s fo PAS 39 and PrRS 7 Reclcssshocnhon of

l Financial Assels ~ Erfechve Daile cnd Tscnsmon j
'Amendments 1o Philippine Inierpre!ohor\ II’REC,~9 ond v ;

[PAS 39: Embedded Denvohves |
: Amondmer‘z? o PAS 39: Ehgrble Hedged ltems v i

Amem}ment 1o PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives ang
Coniinuation ot Hedge Accounling

FAS 40 Investrment Propesrty v
PAS 41 Agricutture ' - v
Philippine Interpretations

IFRIC 1 §Chcmqes in Existing Decommusslonmg, Resloration and
: Sienvilar tiobiliies .

IFRIC 2 | Members’ Share in Co-operdciive Enlities cind Similar
Hnstruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arangemenl Contdins o Lease v
IFRIC § -Righls lo Interests aiising from Decommissioning,
‘Rasleration and Environmental Rehabilitcrtion Funids

IFRIC & Liapilities arising from Pearticipating in o $pecific Make -
: Wcisie E39c1rlcol and Electronlc Equpmen?

IERIC 7 L Applying the Reslulemenl Approach under PAS 29
“Finaincial Reporting in Hypernflaionary Economies




IFRIC ¢

nent of Embedded Darivalives

Recsses

Amendments to Philippine Interpreiolion IFRIC-9 and
FAS 39: Embedded Deiivatives

!IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting ond impaimmenl
§ IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arangements
i ;
VIFRIC 13 Customen Loyally Programmes
AFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assel. Miniium
Funding Requiremenis and their Interaction
Amendmaents to Phiippine Interprelalions IFRIC- 14,
Prepayments of a Minimuim Funding Requirement
IFRIC 14 Hedges of a Net nvestmenl in o Forgign Cperation
IERIC 17 Distrirylions of Non-cash Assets fo Owners
{FRIC 18 ironsters o! Assels frorm Cuslomers
IFRIC 19 Exiinguishing Financial Liabilifies with Equity Instrurnents
IFRIC 20 Slrippitg Costs in the Production Phese of a Surlace
nMine :
BRICZ1 - levies
sic-7 ‘ntroduction of the Furo
SIC-T0 ‘Government Assislance - No Specific Relation to
“Operaling Aclivities
SIC-18 Operating Leoses - Incentives
SiC-25 fncome Taxes - Changes in the Tax Stolus of an Enlity or
; ils Shoreholdars
SIC.27 " Evaluating She Substance of Transactions Invalving 1he
Legol Form ol alease
SiC-2¢ Sewtce (‘oncesmon A|rcmqemems Dlsciosures
Sic-3 : Rcver:ue Boner llcnsochons Involvmg Adverhssng
Services
:51C-32 Infangible Assels - Web Si!e Costs

Philippine Inierprekxhons Commrﬂee Queshons and Answers

PIC QaA
2004-01

PIC Q8.4
2006-02

FIC G&A
2007-01-
Revised

PIC Q&A
2007-03

PIC QA

2007 04

‘PIC Q&A
2008.01-
Revised

{
| PIC QaA
12008-02

PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph ¢ - Rovenuo recognifion
for saites of propetty unils under pre- comizlelion
conliacts

:PAS 27.10{d}) - Clarification of crileria for exemption from :
presenting consolidaled financiat slaiemenls

i PAS 1.103{a) - Basis of preparation of financial
fsrmemenls if an endity has not applied PFRSs in ul

TPAS 40.27 - Yaluation of bank real and ofher properties
sacquired [ROPA)

PAS 101.7 ~ Application of criteria for a quciitying NPAE

PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting post-employment

benefit obligations

PAS 20.43 - Accounting for govemmer laans with low

interest rates under ihe omendments 1o PAS 20




[ HS

PIC Q&A Feormerwonk .23 angd PAS 1.23 - Financial sigtements

2009-01 prepared on  basis olher than going concem v
P QaA PAS 39 AGZ1-72 - Rale used in determining the fair -
2010-01 value of governmen! secuilies in #he Philinpines
PIC Q%A FAS 1R 14 - Bosis of preparation of linoncial statemants -
201¢-02
FIC Q&A PAS | Preseniaiion of Finoneial Statemenls - y
2010-03 Currentmon-curenl classiication of a callable femrm
loon
PIC G&A PAS 110H) - Requirements for o Third Skatemant of y
2011-01 Finoncial Position
PIC QaA PERS 3.2 - Common Control Busingss Combinalions .
:2011-02
PIC Q&A Accouniing for Inter-company Loans v
2071-03
PIC Q8A PAS 32.37-38 - Costs of Pubilic Offering of Shares v
2011-04
PIC Q&A PFRS 1.D1-D8 - Foir Value or Revatuation as Deerned v
2811-05 Cost
[PIC QA PERS 3, Business Combinations [2008), oncd PAS 40, i
2011-06 Investment Property — Acquisition of Investment v
properiies - assel acquisition o business combinglion? i
PIC Q& A PERS 3.2 - Appiication of the Pooling of intarests Method !
2012-01 tor Business Combinations of Enlilies Under Common ! W
Conlrot in Consolidated Finoncial Slalemenis’ :
PIC Q&A Cost of o New Building Construcied on the Site of o y
2012-02 Previaus Buitding _
PIC Q&A Applicability of SMEIG Final Q&As on the Application of v
2013-01 IFRS for SMEs to Philippine SMEs
PIC Q&A PAS 19 - Accounlirﬁg for Employee Benefits under a
2013-03 Defined Contibulion Plan subject 1o Requirernents of v

“Republic Act (RA} 7441, The Prilppine Re tirement Law




PETRON CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION-OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FORDIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBRER 31, 2013

(Amounts in Thousand Pesos)

(Figares hased on functional

currency audited financial

staiements)

_Linappropriated Retained Earnings, begining ) P9,170,090

Adjustinents:
A3ee adjustments in previous year s Reconciliation) (693,003)

Unappropriated Retained Farnings, as adjusted 1
available for dividend distribuiion, beginning 8,476,487

Add: Netincome actually earned/realized during the
period
Net income during the period closed to Rewined Barmiugs _P4,339.346

Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of jointly controlled entity .
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except
those attributable o Cash and Cash Equivalents) -
Unreatized actuzrial gain -
Fair value adiustments (M2M gaing} ’ 594,850
Fair value adjustiments of Investment Property ’
resulling to gain -
Retirement benefits income : -
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - ’
gain -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments 1o the
retained earnings as a result of certain
transactions accounled for under the PFRS -
Sub-total 3,744,496

Add: Non-aclual losses
Fair value adjustment of F'VPL linancial assels 20,041
Depreciation on revaluation increment (aller tax) -
Adjestment due (o devialion from PFRS/GAAP —
loss -
Loss on lair value adjusunent of investment
property (after tax) -

Net income actually earned d uring the period 3,764,537 3,764,537

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as ad justed,

ending 12,241,024
Add (Less):

Dividend declaration during the period (1,421,555}

Distributions paid (1,674.148)

Appropriations of retained earnings during the year -

Reversal of appropriations -

Effects of prior period adjustments (duc 1o PAS 19} {105,802}

Treasury shares -

(3,201,505) (3,201,505)

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND P9,039,519




Key Performance Indicators

The Company's key performance indicators are set out below.

As of December 31 As of June 30
2011 2012 2013 2014
Cutrent ratio 1.5 ' 1.0 1.0 1.1
Debt to equity ratio 1.9 2.7 24 25
Return on equity (%) 15.0 34 54 5.4
Interest rate coverage ratio 3.6 1.9 3.2 3.6
Assets to equity ratio 2.9 37 3.2 3.2

The manner by which the Company calculates the above performance indicators are set out below.
Current Ratio - Total current assets divided by total current liabilities

This ratio is a rough indication of a company's ability to service its current obligations. Generally, the
higher the current ratio, the greater the "cushion" between current obligations and a company's ability to
pay them. , A

Debt to Equity Ratio - Total liabilities divided by iangible net worth

This ratio expresses the relationship between capital contributed by creditors and that contributed by
owners. It expresses the degree of protection provided by the owners for the creditors. The higher the
ratio, the greater the risk being assumed by creditors. A lower ratio generally indicates greater long-term
financial safety. '

Return on Equity - Net income divided by average total stockholders’ equity

This ratio reveals how much profit a company earned in comparison to the total-amount of sharehoider
equity found on the statements of financial position. A business that has a high return on equity is more
likely to be one that is capable of generating cash internaily. For the most part, the higher a company’s
return on equity compared to its industry, the better.

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio — EBITDA divided by interest expense and other financing charges

This ratio is used to assess the company’s financial stabifity by examining whether it is at least profitable
enough to pay off its interest expenses. A ratio greater than 1 indicates that the company has more than
enough interest coverage to pay off its interest expense.,

Assets to Equity Ratio - Total assets divided by total equity (including non-controlling interest)

This ratio is used as a measure of financial leverage and long-term solvency. In essence, the function of

the ratio is to determine the value of the total assets of the company, less any portion of the assets that
are owned by the shareholders of the corporation. ‘




